
THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
2016 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 

 
A G E N D A 

      
DATE:  Wednesday, June, 15, 2016 
REGULAR MEETING:  7:00 P.M. 

≠ Denotes resolution prepared  
 

1. Call the Meeting to Order  
 

2. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest & the General Nature Thereof.  
 
3. Adoption and Receipt of Minutes of the Previous Meeting.≠ 

  
(a) Council Meeting – June 1, 2016  
(b) Closed Council Meeting – June 1, 2016  

 
4. Business Arising Out of the Minutes.  
 
5. PUBLIC MEETINGS 

 
1. Public Information Meeting – Rezoning Application D14/HAY – Gerry Hayden, 

Concession 3, Part Lots 24 & 25, municipally known as 7128 Smith Road. 
 

*note this Public Information Meeting will be held on Thursday, June 23, 
2016 at 7:00 p.m. at the Municipal Complex – 7404 Wellington Rd. 34 

 
(a) Notice of Public Meeting 

 
(b) Report PD-2016-019 Public Meeting - Rezoning Application, File D14/HAY 

Gerry Hayden, Concession 3, Part Lots 24 & 25, municipally known as 7128 
Smith Road. 
 
*to be distributed under separate cover on Monday, June 13, 2016. 

  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
June 15, 2016 MEETING 

  
 

P a g e  | 2 
 

 
2. Public Information Meeting - Rezoning Application File D14/ONT – 2435953 

Ontario Inc (ASR Transportation), Concession 7, Rear Part Lot 25, municipally 
known as 7456 McLean Road W. 

 
*note this Public Information Meeting will be held on Thursday, June 23, 2016 
at 7:00 p.m. at the Municipal Complex – 7404 Wellington Rd. 34 
 
(a) Notice of Complete Application & Public Meeting 

 
(b) Report PD-2016-020 – Public Meeting - Rezoning Application File D14/ONT – 

2435953 Ontario Inc (ASR Transportation), Concession 7, Rear Part Lot 25, 
municipally known as 7456 McLean Road W.  
 
*to be distributed under separate cover on Monday, June 13, 2016.   

 
3. Public Information Meeting - Rezoning Application File D14/J2K – J2K Capital 

Inc., Concession 7, Rear Part Lot 26, RP 61R863, Brock Road S. 
 

*note this Public Information Meeting will be held on Thursday, June 23, 2016 
at 7:00 p.m. at the Municipal Complex – 7404 Wellington Rd. 34 

 
(a) Notice of Revised Application & Public Meeting  

 
(b) Report PD-2016-021 – Public Meeting- Rezoning Application File D14/J2K – J2K 

Capital Inc., Concession 7, Rear Part Lot 26, RP 61R863, Brock Road S.  
 
* to be distributed under separate cover on Monday, June 13, 2016.   

 
6. COMMUNICATIONS  
 

1. University of Guelph /Dufferin Aggregates 
Mill Creek Pit, Licence 5738 
7115 Concession 2  

  
(a) LRG Environmental Mill Creek Coordinated Monitoring Report – January 1 to 

December 31, 2015.≠ 
 

(b) Correspondence from Dufferin Aggregates regarding Mill Creek Property 
Annual Monitoring Reports dated March 29, 2016.≠ 
 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
June 15, 2016 MEETING 

  
 

P a g e  | 3 
 

(c) Correspondence from Harden Environmental Services Ltd. regarding Mill 
Creek Pit – Review of 2015 Monitoring data dated May 26, 2016.≠   
 

2. CBM/St. Mary’s Cement 
Roszell Pit - Licence No. 625189 
6618 and 6524 Roszell Rd. 

 
(a) Correspondence from Harden Environmental regarding temperature changes 

in groundwater and surface water, CBM, Roszell Road Pit with attachments 
dated June 7, 2016. ≠  

3. Intergovernmental Affairs≠ 
 

(a) Various correspondence for review.   
 

7. DELEGATIONS / PRESENTATIONS ≠ 
 

7:05 p.m. – Mr. Rory McAlpine, Morriston By-Pass Coalition, presentation to  Mr. 
Ted Arnott, MPP Wellington Halton-Hills.  

 
7:15 p.m. -  Mr. Robert McFarlane, Presentation of 2016 Ontario Senior of the 

Year.  
 
7:30 p.m. -  Ms. Tamara Hetherington regarding Black Bridge Cultural Heritage 

Landscape Official Plan Amendment. 
 

8. REPORTS  

1. Puslinch Fire and Rescue Services  
 

(a) Puslinch Fire and Rescue Services – April/May, 2016 Report ≠ 
 
(b) 2016 Municipal/NFPP Fire Protection Profile – Township of Puslinch ≠ 
        

2. Finance Department  
 

(a) Report FIN-2016-016 – 2015 Commodity Price Hedging Agreements.≠    
 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
June 15, 2016 MEETING 

  
 

P a g e  | 4 
 

3. Administration Department   
 

(a) ADM-2016-010 – Vacancy on Council ≠ 

4. Planning and Building  
 
(a) Chief Building Official Report – May 2016 ≠ 

 
(b) Report – County of Wellington Planning and Development Department – 2016 

Housekeeping Amendment to Zoning By-Law 19/85 Township-wide Zoning 
By-Law Amendment.≠ 

5. Roads & Parks Department 
 
 None.  
 

6. Recreation Department  
 
None.   

7. Mayor’s Updates  
 
(a) Report – County of Wellington Planning Committee – Comments on 

Proposed Changes to Provincial Plans dated June 9, 2016.≠ 
 

(b) Wellington Dufferin Guelph Public Health Board of Health Report – 2015 Tick 
and Lyme Disease Program Report dated June 1, 2016.  

 
9. NOTICES OF MOTION  
 
 None.  
 
10. COMMITTEE MINUTES  

 
None.   

  
11. MUNICIPAL ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
12. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
June 15, 2016 MEETING 

  
 

P a g e  | 5 
 

13. CLOSED ITEMS ≠ 
 
None.  
 

14. BY-LAWS ≠  
 

(a) A By-law to authorize the Mayor and Clerk to execute a Licence Agreement with 
John Hamilton for use of Township Storm Water Management Lands – Block 6, 
Plan 847  - Resolution No. 2016-230  
  

(b) A by-law to repeal By-law No. 37/13 – Deputy Clerk for the Township of Puslinch.  
 
15. CONFIRMING BY-LAW ≠ 
 

(a) By-law to confirm the proceedings of Council for the Corporation of the 
Township of Puslinch.  

 
16. ADJOURNMENT ≠ 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
June 1, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 1 of 6 
 

M I N U T E S 
 

DATE:  Wednesday, June 1, 2016  
TIME:   6:45 p.m. 

 
The June 1, 2016 Regular Council Meeting was held on the above date and called to order at 
12:30 p.m. in the Council Chambers, Aberfoyle.  
 
1. ATTENDANCE:   

 
Mayor Dennis Lever  
Councillor Matthew Bulmer 
Councillor Susan Fielding  
Councillor Ken Roth  
 
STAFF IN ATTENDANCE: 

 
1. Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk  
2. Donna Tremblay, Deputy Clerk 
3. Paul Creamer, Director of Finance/Treasurer 
4. Don Creed, Director of Public Works and Parks  

    
OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE 
 
1. Doug Smith 
2. K. Lever 
3. Kevin Johnson 
4. Kathy White  
5. Kyle Davis  
  
Mayor Lever expressed the shock and grief of Council at the passing of Councillor Wayne 
Stokley on Sunday, May 29, 2016.  Mayor Lever requested that a moment of silence in 
honour of Councillor Stokley.   
 

2. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST & THE GENERAL NATURE THEREOF: 
 
None.  
 

3. ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES: 
 

(a) Council Meeting – May 18, 2016  
(b) Closed Council Meeting –May 18, 2016  

 
Resolution No. 2016-227:  Moved by Councillor Roth and  

Seconded by Councillor Fielding  
 
That the minutes of the following meetings be adopted as written and distributed:  

 
(a) Council Meeting – May 18, 2016 
(b) Closed Council Meeting – May 18, 2016 

 
CARRIED  

 
 
4. BUSINESS ARISING OUT OF THE MINUTES: 

 
None.     

  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
June 1, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 2 of 6 
 

 
5. PUBLIC MEETINGS:  

 
1. Public Information Meeting – Rezoning Application D14/HAY – Gerry Hayden, 

Concession 3, Part Lots 24 & 25, municipally known as 7128 Smith Road,. 
 

*note this Public Information Meeting will be held on Thursday, June 23, 2016 at 
7:00 p.m. at the Municipal Complex – 7404 Wellington Rd. 34 

 
(a) Notice of Public Meeting  

 
 

2. Public Information Meeting - Rezoning Application File D14/ONT – 2435953 Ontario 
Inc (ASR Transportation), Concession 7, Rear Part Lot 25, municipally known as 
7456 McLean Road W. 

 
*note this Public Information Meeting will be held on Thursday, June 23, 2016 at 
7:00 p.m. at the Municipal Complex – 7404 Wellington Rd. 34 
 
(a) Notice of Complete Application & Public Meeting 
  

3. Public Information Meeting - Rezoning Application File D14/J2K – J2K Capital Inc., 
Concession 7, Rear Part Lot 26, RP 61R863, Brock Road S. 

 
 *note this Public Information Meeting will be held on Thursday, June 23, 2016 at 
7:00 p.m. at the Municipal Complex – 7404 Wellington Rd. 34 
 
(a) Notice of Revised Application & Public Meeting 

 
6. COMMUNICATIONS: 
  
1. City of Guelph  Tier 3 Water Quantity Risk Assessment Peer Review  

      
(a) Peer Review Package.≠    

 
See Agenda Item 7.1  

 
2. University of Guelph /Dufferin Aggregates 

Mill Creek Pit, Licence 5738 
7115 Concession 2  
 
(a) Correspondence from Dufferin Aggregates regarding Monthly Monitoring Report, Mill 

Creek Pit, License #5738, (May 2016), Township of Puslinch, Wellington County dated 
May 12, 2016. 

 
Mr. Stan Denhoed, Harden Environmental Services Ltd. has advised that he has 
reviewed the monthly report and he is satisfied that there are no exceedences.  
 

3. Environmental Registry 
 
(a) Victoria Park Villages Inc. – 1159 Victoria Rd. South, Lot 5, Concession 8 – Puslinch – 

Permit to Take Water- OWRA s. 34.   
(b) Royal Canin Canada Company – 100 Beiber Road – Lot 28, Concession 8 – Permit to 

Take Water – OWRA s. 34. 
  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
June 1, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 3 of 6 
 

 
4. Intergovernmental Affairs  

 
 Resolution No. 2016-228:   Moved by Councillor Roth and  

 Seconded by Councillor Bulmer  
 

That the correspondence items listed on the Council Agenda for June 1, 2016 Council 
meeting be received.  
 
CARRIED 
 

7. DELEGATIONS/PRESENTATIONS 
 
1. Mr. Kyle Davis, Risk Management Official regarding City of Guelph – Tier 3.   

*See Agenda Items 6.1.   
 
Resolution No. 2016-229:   Moved by Councillor Fielding and  

Seconded by Councillor Roth 
 

That Council receive the presentation by Kyle Davis, Risk Management Official 
regarding City of Guelph – Tier 3  Water Quantity Risk Assessment Peer Review; and  
 
That Council receive the City of Guelph – Tier 3 Water Quantity Risk Assessment Peer 
Review – Peer Review Package.   
 
CARRIED  
 

8. REPORTS: 
 

1. Puslinch Fire and Rescue Services  
 
None.  
 

2. Finance Department  
 
None.  
 

3. Administration Department 
 

(a) Report ADM-2016-009 –John Hamilton - Request for Temporary Use of Lands  - 
Storm Water Management Lands - Block 6, Plan 847.≠ 

 
Resolution No. 2016-230:   Moved by Councillor Roth and  

Seconded by Councillor Fielding  
 
That Report ADM-2016-009 regarding John Hamilton – Request for Temporary Use of 
Lands – Storm Water Management Lands – Block 6, Plan 847 be received; and 
 
That Council grant permission to John Hamilton for the use of the lands; and  
 
That Council enact a By-law to authorize the Mayor and Clerk to execute a Licence 
Agreement with John Hamilton for the purpose of permitting the use of Township lands 
as outlined in Report ADM-2016-009. 
 
CARRIED  

  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
June 1, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 4 of 6 
 

 
 

4. Planning and Building Department  
 
None.  

 
5. Roads & Parks Department  

 
None.   

 
6. Recreation Department 

 
None.  
 

7. Mayor’s Updates  
 
None.  
     

9. NOTICE OF MOTION:  
  
None.  
 

10. COMMITTEE MINUTES 
 
None.   
 

11. MUNICIPAL ANNOUNCEMENTS 
       
None.   
 

12. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 
None.  

 
13. CLOSED MEETING 
 

Council was in closed session from 12:31 p.m. to 12:40 p.m.  
Council recessed from 12:41 p.m. to 1:00 p.m. 

 
(a) Confidential Verbal Report from Karen Landry CAO/Clerk, regarding personal matters 

about an identifiable individual, including municipal or local board employees -  
Employee Matters. 

 
Resolution No. 2016-231:   Moved by Councillor Fielding and  

 Seconded by Councillor Roth 
 

That Council shall go into closed session under Section 239 of the Municipal Act for the 
purpose of: 
 
(a) Confidential Verbal Report from Karen Landry CAO/Clerk, regarding personal 

matters about an identifiable individual, including municipal or local board employees 
-  Employee Matters  

 
CARRIED  

  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
June 1, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 5 of 6 
 

 
Resolution No. 2016-232    Moved by Councillor Roth and  

  Seconded by Councillor Fielding 
 
That Council move into open session. 
 
CARRIED 

 
 

(a) Confidential Verbal Report from Karen Landry CAO/Clerk, regarding personal matters 
about an identifiable individual, including municipal or local board employees -  
Employee Matters. 

 
Resolution No. 2016-233      Moved by Councillor Bulmer and  

  Seconded by Councillor Roth  
 

That Council receive the confidential verbal report from Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk, 
regarding personal matters about an identifiable individual, including municipal or local 
board employees -  Employee Matters; and  

 
That Staff proceed as directed.  

 
CARRIED 
 

14. BY-LAWS:  
 
(a) A by-law to authorize the entering into of a Site Plan Agreement with G S Bunny 

Investments Inc. – Resolution No. 2016-217  
 

(b) A by-law to authorize the entering into of a Subdivision Agreement with 1719303 
Ontario Inc. – Resolution No. 2016-218 

 
Resolution 2016-234     Moved by Councillor Fielding and  

Seconded by Councillor Roth 
 

That the following By-laws be taken as read three times and finally passed in open 
Council: 

 
That the following By-laws be taken as read three times and finally passed in open 
Council: 

 
(a) By-law 033/16 a by-law to authorize the entering into of a Site Plan Agreement with 

G S Bunny Investments Inc.  
 

(b) By-law 034/16 a by-law to authorize the entering into of a Subdivision Agreement 
with 1719303 Ontario Inc. 

  
CARRIED  
 

15. CONFIRMING BY-LAW  
 
(a) By-Law to confirm the proceedings of Council for the Corporation of the Township of 

Puslinch  
  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
June 1, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 6 of 6 
 

 
Resolution 2016-235:   Moved by Councillor Roth and  

 Seconded by Councillor Fielding  
 
That the following By-law be taken as read three times and finally passed in open Council: 
 
(a) By-Law 035/16 being a by-law to confirm the proceedings of Council for the Corporation 

of the Township of Puslinch at its meeting held on the 1st day of June, 2016. 
 
CARRIED  

 
16.  ADJOURNMENT: 
 

Resolution No. 2016-236:    Moved by Councillor Fielding and  
            Seconded by Councillor Roth 
 

That Council hereby adjourns at 1:41 p.m. 
    
CARRIED 

 
   ________________________________________ 

    Dennis Lever, Mayor 
  

   
 ________________________________________ 

  Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk 



 

THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING 

TAKE NOTICE that the Council of the Township of Puslinch will hold a public meeting on Thursday the 23rd of June 
2016, at 7:00 pm in the Council Chambers at 7404 Wellington Road 34, to consider the proposed Zoning By-law 
Amendment, pursuant to the requirements of Section 34 of the Planning Act, R.S.O., 1990, as amended. The file number 
assigned to this application is D14/HAY. 

THE LAND SUBJECT to the application is municipally known as 7128 Smith Road  and legally known as Part Lots 24 & 25, 
Concession 3, 61R11766, Township of Puslinch. The subject lands are shown on the map below. 

THE PURPOSE AND EFFECT of the application is to amend the Township of Puslinch’s Zoning By-law 19/85 from an 
Agricultural (A) Zone to a Site Specific Agricultural Zone to permit a landscape contractor’s yard with an office and 
outdoor storage of equipment and materials. 

ORAL OR WRITTEN SUBMISSIONS may be made by the public either in support or in opposition to the proposed Zoning 
By-law Amendment. Any person may attend the public meeting and make and oral submission or direct a written 
submission to the Township Clerk at the address below. All those present at the public meeting will be given the 
opportunity to make an oral submission, however; it is requested that those who wish to address Council notify the 
Township Clerk in advance of the public meeting. 

TAKE NOTICE that if a person or public body does not make an oral submission at a public meeting or make a written 
submission to the Township of Puslinch before the Zoning By-law is passed, the person or public body is not entitled to 
appeal the decision of the Council of the Township of Puslinch to the Ontario Municipal Board. 

AND TAKE NOTICE that if a person or public body does not make an oral submission at a public meeting or make a 
written submission to the Township of Puslinch before the Zoning By-law is passed, the person or public body may not 
be added as a party to the hearing of an appeal before the Ontario Municipal Board unless, in the opinion of the Board, 
there are reasonable grounds to do so. 

REQUEST FOR NOTICE OF DECSION regarding the Zoning By-law amendment must be made in written format to the 
Township Clerk at the address shown below. 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION regarding the proposed amendment is available for review between 9:00 a.m. and 4:30 
p.m. at the Township of Puslinch Municipal Office as of the date of this notice. If you wish to express your views with 
respect to this application, please forward your comments to Kelly Patzer, Development Coordinator, 
kpatzer@puslinch.ca. 

Dated at the 
Township of Puslinch 
on this 20th day of May 2016. 
 
Karen Landry                             
CAO/Clerk   
Township of Puslinch 
7404 Wellington Road 34 
Guelph, Ontario  N1H 6H9 
Phone (519) 763-1226 
admin@puslinch.ca 

 

LOCATION MAP 
 
N 

mailto:kpatzer@puslinch.ca


 

THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 

NOTICE OF COMPLETE APPLICATION & PUBLIC MEETING 
(revised key map) 

TAKE NOTICE that pursuant to the requirements of the Planning Act, R.S.O., 1990, as amended, the Township of Puslinch 
has received a revised application to amend Zoning By-law 19/85. The file number assigned to this application is 
D14/ONT 

TAKE NOTICE that the Council of the Township of Puslinch will hold a public meeting on Thursday the 23rd of June 
2016, at 7:00 pm in the Council Chambers at 7404 Wellington Road 34, to consider the proposed Zoning By-law 
Amendment, pursuant to the requirements of Section 34 of the Planning Act, R.S.O., 1990, as amended. 

THE LAND SUBJECT to the application is municipally known as 7456 McLean Road West and legally known as Rear Part 
Lot 25, Concession 7, RP 61R4472, Part 2, Township of Puslinch. The subject lands are shown on the inset map. 

THE PURPOSE AND EFFECT of the application is to amend the Township of Puslinch’s Zoning By-law 19/85 from 
Agricultural (A) Zone to Industrial (IND) Zone, to permit the development of an industrial mall including offices, truck 
repair shop and trailer parking. A definition for “Truck Repair Shop” is proposed to be added to the zoning applicable to 
the property. 

ORAL OR WRITTEN SUBMISSIONS may be made by the public either in support or in opposition to the proposed Zoning 
By-law Amendment. Any person may attend the public meeting and make and oral submission or direct a written 
submission to the Township Clerk at the address below. All those present at the public meeting will be given the 
opportunity to make an oral submission, however; it is requested that those who wish to address Council notify the 
Township Clerk in advance of the public meeting. 

TAKE NOTICE that if a person or public body does not make an oral submission at a public meeting or make a written 
submission to the Township of Puslinch before the Zoning By-law is passed, the person or public body is not entitled to 
appeal the decision of the Council of the Township of Puslinch to the Ontario Municipal Board. 

AND TAKE NOTICE that if a person or public body does not make an oral submission at a public meeting or make a 
written submission to the Township of Puslinch before the Zoning By-law is passed, the person or public body may not 
be added as a party to the hearing of an appeal before the Ontario Municipal Board unless, in the opinion of the Board, 
there are reasonable grounds to do so. 

REQUEST FOR NOTICE OF DECSION regarding the Zoning By-law amendment must be made in written format to the 
Township Clerk at the address shown below. 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION regarding the proposed amendment is available for review between 9:00 a.m. and 4:30 
p.m. at the Township of Puslinch Municipal Office as of the date of this notice. If you wish to express your views with 
respect to this application, please forward your comments to Kelly Patzer, Development Coordinator, 
kpatzer@puslinch.ca. 

Dated at the 
Township of Puslinch 
on this 20th day of May 2016. 
 
Karen Landry                            
CAO/Clerk   
Township of Puslinch 
7404 Wellington Road 34 
Guelph, Ontario  N1H 6H9 
Phone (519) 763-1226 
admin@puslinch.ca 

 

KEY MAP 
 
N 

mailto:kpatzer@puslinch.ca


 

THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 

NOTICE OF REVISED APPLICATION & PUBLIC MEETING 

TAKE NOTICE that pursuant to the requirements of the Planning Act, R.S.O., 1990, as amended, the Township of Puslinch 
has received a revised application to amend Zoning By-law 19/85. The file number assigned to this application is 
D14/J2K 

TAKE NOTICE that the Council of the Township of Puslinch will hold a public meeting on Thursday the 23rd of June 
2016, at 7:00 pm in the Council Chambers at 7404 Wellington Road 34, to consider the proposed Zoning By-law 
Amendment, pursuant to the requirements of Section 34 of the Planning Act, R.S.O., 1990, as amended. 

THE LAND SUBJECT to the application is municipally known as 0 Brock Road and legally known as Part Lot 26, Concession 
7, RP 61R863, Parts 2, 3 & 4 Township of Puslinch. The subject lands are shown on the map below. 

THE PURPOSE AND EFFECT of the application is to amend the Township of Puslinch’s Zoning By-law 19/85 to rezone the 
lands from Agricultural (A) Zone to Highway Commercial (C2) Zone. There are no specific development plans associated 
with this zoning by-law amendment. 

ORAL OR WRITTEN SUBMISSIONS may be made by the public either in support or in opposition to the proposed Zoning 
By-law Amendment. Any person may attend the public meeting and make and oral submission or direct a written 
submission to the Township Clerk at the address below. All those present at the public meeting will be given the 
opportunity to make an oral submission, however; it is requested that those who wish to address Council notify the 
Township Clerk in advance of the public meeting. 

TAKE NOTICE that if a person or public body does not make an oral submission at a public meeting or make a written 
submission to the Township of Puslinch before the Zoning By-law is passed, the person or public body is not entitled to 
appeal the decision of the Council of the Township of Puslinch to the Ontario Municipal Board. 

AND TAKE NOTICE that if a person or public body does not make an oral submission at a public meeting or make a 
written submission to the Township of Puslinch before the Zoning By-law is passed, the person or public body may not 
be added as a party to the hearing of an appeal before the Ontario Municipal Board unless, in the opinion of the Board, 
there are reasonable grounds to do so. 

REQUEST FOR NOTICE OF DECSION regarding the Zoning By-law amendment must be made in written format to the 
Township Clerk at the address shown below. 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION regarding the proposed amendment is available for review between 9:00 a.m. and 4:30 
p.m. at the Township of Puslinch Municipal Office as of the date of this notice. If you wish to express your views with 
respect to this application, please forward your comments to Kelly Patzer, Development Coordinator, 
kpatzer@puslinch.ca. 

Dated at the 
Township of Puslinch 
on this 20th day of May 2016. 
 
Karen Landry                            
CAO/Clerk   
Township of Puslinch 
7404 Wellington Road 34 
Guelph, Ontario  N1H 6H9 
Phone (519) 763-1226 
admin@puslinch.ca 

 

LOCATION MAP 
 
N 

mailto:kpatzer@puslinch.ca












































































































































































































 
Our File:  0004 
 
May 26, 2016 
 

Township of Puslinch 

7404 Wellington Road 34  

Guelph, ON, N1H 6H9 

 

Attention: Ms. Karen Landry 

  CAO 

 

Dear Ms. Landry; 

 

Re: Mill Creek Pit 

 Review of 2015 Monitoring Data 

 

We are pleased to provide a review of the 2015 groundwater monitoring 

report prepared by WSP Canada Inc. dated March 2016. 

 

1)  Pumping 

 

It is mentioned that a significantly greater volume of water was pumped 

from Silt Pond 4 back to the Phase 1 pond.   This is done to maintain 

water levels within threshold limits since the Phase 1 pond is the source 

of water for the wash operation.   We would like it confirmed that in 

the absence of any pumping, water levels in the Phase 1 pond would 

likely be above the threshold elevation. 

 

2)  Groundwater Elevations 

 

Groundwater elevations in the area west of the Phase 3 pond were 

notably lower in 2015.  The water levels have been rising as a response 

to the development of the Phase 3 pond since 2012.  Drier conditions 

throughout 2015 resulted in returning water levels to those observed in 

early 2013.    In general we do not have any concerns with the observed 

water levels. 

  

3)  Groundwater Temperatures 

 

There is an identified thermal impact on groundwater temperatures 

downgradient of both Phase 1 and Phase 3 ponds.  Mill Creek is located 

within 100 metres of the Phase 3 pond and thermal plumes from gravel 

Harden Environmental Services Ltd. 
4622 Nassagaweya-Puslinch Townline Road 
R.R. 1, Moffat, Ontario, L0P 1J0 
Phone: (519) 826-0099 Fax:  (519) 826-9099 
 

Groundwater Studies 
 
Geochemistry 
 
Phase I / II 
 
Regional Flow Studies 
 
Contaminant Investigations 
 
OMB Hearings 
 
Water Quality Sampling 
 
Monitoring 
 
Groundwater Protection 
Studies 
 
Groundwater Modeling 
 
Groundwater Mapping 
 
Permits to Take Water 
 
Environmental Compliance 
Approvals 
 

ARDEN 



May 26, 2016 

Page 2 

pit ponds are known to persist for greater than 100 metres.  Two monitors are located 

approximately half-way between Mill Creek and the Phase 3 pond and the measured 

temperatures are not indicative of a significant thermal impact to the shallow 

groundwater.   

 

The replacement data logger in 92-33 is measuring lower temperatures than the 

former logger.  Is there an explanation for this shift since 2012? 

 

In our review of the 2014 monitoring report we requested that a statistical analysis be 

conducted on groundwater temperatures measured in drive points located within and 

beside Mill Creek.  This analysis was provided on Figure B103.  A subtle increase in the 

100-day moving groundwater temperature average is observed in each drive point 

including DP18 located several hundred metres upstream of this site.  There is no 

indication that the pit activities are having an impact on the temperature of groundwater 

discharging to Mill Creek. 

 

4)  Groundwater Discharge to Mill Creek 

 

The volume of groundwater discharge to Mill Creek has, in general, been improving 

since 2002.  The upward hydraulic gradient at DP2 for example, suggests significantly 

more groundwater discharge to Mill Creek since 2008 and at DP5 since 2012. 

 

At DP19 there was reversal in groundwater flow in 2015.  Similar conditions were 

observed 1998 to 2004.   There is no obvious explanation for this reversal considering 

that the water level in the Phase 1 pond is above its threshold and there is no extraction 

occurring in Heritage Lake.  All contributing factors should be evaluated if this condition 

persists in 2016. 

 

Summary 

 

In summary, we are satisfied with the groundwater and surface water conditions within 

and adjacent to Mill Creek Aggregates Pit.  The Phase 3 pond (located nearest Mill 

Creek) has been developed to its fullest extent and therefore the greatest thermal and 

hydraulic potential impacts from the licensed area will have been occurring since 2013.  

There is no obvious thermal impact on groundwater midway to Mill Creek.   

Groundwater discharge to Mill Creek has increased downgradient of the site and is 

generally occurring at pre-development rates elsewhere.  The one notable location of 

decreased recharge occurring in 2015 is DP19 located between this site and Heritage 

Lake.   

  



May 26, 2016 

Page 3 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Harden Environmental Services Ltd. 

 

 
 

Stan Denhoed, P.Eng., M.Sc. 

Senior Hydrogeologist 



 

Roszell Pit Thermal Impact  6/7/2016  

 
Harden 
Environmental 

4622 Nassagaweya-Puslinch Townline   R.R. 1 Moffat Ontario Canada L0P 1J0 

Phone:  519.826.0099  fax: 519.826.9099 www.hardenv.com 
Groundwater Studies 

 
Geochemistry 

 

Phase I / II 
 

Regional Flow Studies 

 

Contaminant Investigations 

 

OMB Hearings 
 

Water Quality Sampling 

 
Monitoring 

 

Groundwater Protection 
Studies 

 

Groundwater Modelling 
 

Groundwater Mapping 

 

 

Our File:  0521 

 

June 7, 2016 

 

Township of Puslinch 

7404 Wellington Road 34  

Guelph, ON, N1H 6H9 

 

Attention: Karen Landry 

  CAO 

 

Dear Mrs. Landry: 

 

Regarding:  Temperature Changes in Groundwater and Surface 

Water, CBM, Roszell Road Pit 

Extractive activities at the Roszell Road Pit are causing a thermal impact 

to groundwater and surface water as evident in monitoring data provided 

by the operator CBM Aggregates.  Recent correspondence regarding this 

issue in the form of a Harden Environmental letter (May 2, 2016) 

reviewing the Site 2015 Groundwater Monitoring Report and a memo 

response (May 16, 2016) from Groundwater Science Corp. are provided 

in Appendix A. 

The May 16, 2016 memo from Groundwater Science Corp. raises some 

issues in regards to the interpretation of the timing and location of 

below-water-table extraction, interpretation of the natural range of 

groundwater temperatures and the interpretation of initiation of 

mitigation. 

Below-Water-Table Extraction 

In 2009 the Township and Preston Sand and Gravel participated in a 

process to resolve outstanding groundwater issues related to the 

proposed Roszell Pit.  This was a formal process as part of OMB 

Hearing PL090122.  I have attached the Statement of Agreed Facts 

arising from the process (Appendix B).  The statement was signed by 

Stan Denhoed, Andrew Pentney and Ray Blackport.  This statement 

affirms the importance that the Township placed on minimizing the 

impact to temperature of groundwater discharging to nearby cold water 



 Harden 

Environmental 

  File: 0521   

Roszell Pit Thermal Impact Page 2 of 4 6/7/2016 

fisheries. 

Two references to below water table extraction relative to the western license boundary 

are copied below.  

 

 

I have reviewed the Township of Puslinch files and confirm that there has not been 

consultation with the Township in this regard.  According to the Ministry of Natural 

Resources and Forestry, no thermal study has been completed or reviewed.  Therefore, 

below-water-table extraction cannot occur within 120 metres of the western license 

boundary. 

The May 16, 2016 GSC letter states that below water table extraction commenced in 

2014 and shows this to occur in the area outside of the 120 m setback.  It is our opinion 

that in contravention to the site plan, below-water-table extraction has occurred in Part A 

of the phased operation within 120 metres of the western property line prior to 2014.  Our 

opinion is based on the  following: 

1)  The site plans (page 4 of 6) stipulate that Part A (Figure 1) is to have a pit floor 

minimum elevation of ±299 m AMSL.  The Compliance Assessment Report (CAR) for 

2013 records that the lowest floor elevation is ± 296 m AMSL. 

2)  The Google Earth images for November 7 2012, January 20 2013, September 4 2013 

and September 27 2013 (Figures 2 to 5) show the presence of water in the extraction area 

of Area A within 120 metres of the west licence boundary. 

3)  The water table as measured in BH7S (location shown on Figure 6) has an elevation 

of approximately 297 m AMSL in November 2012, 296.8 in January 2013 and 296.7 in 

September 2013.  This would suggest that the lowest floor elevation of approximately 

296 would be below the water table and result in standing water in Part A in 2012 and 

2013.  Ground water levels were very low during the summer of 2012 and this below 

water table extraction may have been inadvertent, however, impacts to groundwater 

temperatures appear to have occurred. 



 Harden 

Environmental 

  File: 0521   

Roszell Pit Thermal Impact Page 3 of 4 6/7/2016 

Area A is directly upgradient of surface water station SW6 and given the time line of 

extraction commencing in the summer/fall of 2012 and the thermal impact commencing 

late 2012/early 2013 it is reasonable to assume that the observed temperature change at 

SW6 is caused by the extractive activity including extraction below the water table. 

The 2015 air photo (Figure 7) shows that the area extracted below the water table within 

120 metres of the west licence boundary has been filled in.  This is reflected in lower 

temperatures recorded at SW6.  Nonetheless, the range of temperatures in 2014 was 6.8 

to 11°C and in 2015 was 8 to 12°C.  It is our interpretation that since 2013, the 

temperatures at SW6 represent a breach in the threshold and mitigative measures need to 

be enacted. 

Natural Range of Temperatures 

There are seven years of background temperature monitoring data collected between 

2005 and 2012.  The natural range of temperatures at SW6 is 7.9 to 9.7°C (Figure 8).  In 

2013 the range increased to 5.8 to 12.6°C.  The suggestion made in the  Groundwater 

Science Corp. memo that the 2013 data represents background conditions is not 

supported by the seven years of monitoring data prior to 2012.   The only change that 

occurred in 2013 to cause the temperature variation is the stripping of soil and excavation 

of overburden.  This allows solar energy and cold atmospheric temperatures to conduct 

through the unsaturated zone and/or to directly affect temperatures of groundwater as 

exposed in the excavation shown on the accompanying figures for November 2012 and 

January 2013.  On behalf of the Township of Puslinch we reject the suggestion that the 

increased temperatures in 2013 represent natural background conditions.  It is clear to us 

that the 2013 data of elevated temperatures at SW6 is caused by extractive activities, 

including below water table activities and cannot be construed as the ‘new normal’ for 

operations going forward.  

Initiation of Mitigative Measures 

The license condition agreed to by the licensee, the MNRF and the Township of Puslinch 

is that a 1°C change in temperature is required to initiate additional investigation and/or 

mitigation measures.   The 1°C trigger is a recommendation from the original 

hydrogeology study in support of the pit application.   We understand that some 

additional monitoring has taken place and that an ecologist has been retained to further 

evaluate the increase in temperature and impact on aquatic life.  We support this measure, 

however, there has been a reduction in redds already recorded in Tributary 7 and the 

ecologist’s 2015 report implicates water temperature to a delay in spawning in late 2016. 

Therefore it seems prudent to move to the next step.   

It is our opinion that discussions with the MNRF, The Township of Pusilnch and CBM 

are warranted to discuss the compliance issues as well as mitigation, if necessary to 

prevent further thermal impact to adjacent streams. 



 Harden 

Environmental 

  File: 0521   

Roszell Pit Thermal Impact Page 4 of 4 6/7/2016 

 

Sincerely,  

Harden Environmental Services Ltd. 

 

Stan Denhoed, M.Sc., P.Eng. 

Senior Hydrogeologist 

 

 



Project No: 0521 

Figure 1: Operational Phasing Part A Date: May 2016 
Harden 

Environmental 

Services Ltd. 
Drawn By: AR 

Concessions 3 and 4 Part Lots 1, 2 and 3 

Township Puslinch, County of Wellington 

Roszell Road Pit 

Source: Site Plans Page 4 of 6 Operational Phasing and Acoustic Recommendations (December 10, 2009) 



Project No: 0521 

Figure 2: Imagery November 7, 2012 Date: May 2016 
Harden 

Environmental 

Services Ltd. 
Drawn By: AR 

Concessions 3 and 4 Part Lots 1, 2 and 3 

Township Puslinch, County of Wellington 

Roszell Road Pit 



Project No: 0521 

Figure 3: Imagery January 20, 2013 Date: May 2016 
Harden 

Environmental 

Services Ltd. 
Drawn By: AR 

Concessions 3 and 4 Part Lots 1, 2 and 3 

Township Puslinch, County of Wellington 

Roszell Road Pit 



Project No: 0521 

Figure 4: Imagery September 4, 2013 Date: May 2016 
Harden 

Environmental 

Services Ltd. 
Drawn By: AR 

Concessions 3 and 4 Part Lots 1, 2 and 3 

Township Puslinch, County of Wellington 

Roszell Road Pit 



Project No: 0521 

Figure 5: Imagery September 27, 2013 Date: May 2016 
Harden 

Environmental 

Services Ltd. 
Drawn By: AR 

Concessions 3 and 4 Part Lots 1, 2 and 3 

Township Puslinch, County of Wellington 

Roszell Road Pit 



Figure 6: Harden 

Environmental 

Services 

Ltd. 

Project No: 0521 

Date: May 2016 

Drawn By: GSC 

Concessions 3 and 4 Part Lots 1, 2 and 3 

Township Puslinch, County of Wellington 

Monitor Locations 

Roszell Road Pit 



Project No: 0521 

Figure 7: Imagery 2015 Date: May 2016 
Harden 

Environmental 

Services Ltd. 
Drawn By: AR 

Concessions 3 and 4 Part Lots 1, 2 and 3 

Township Puslinch, County of Wellington 

Roszell Road Pit 

Aerial Imagery Source: County of Wellington 



Project No: 0521 

Figure 8: SW6 Temperature Data Date: May 2016 
Harden 

Environmental 

Services Ltd. 
Drawn By: GSC 

Concessions 3 and 4 Part Lots 1, 2 and 3 

Township Puslinch, County of Wellington 

Roszell Road Pit 



 
  
 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix A 

 
2015 Groundwater Monitoring Report Review 

Harden Environmental Services Ltd. May 2, 2016 

 

Temperature Monitoring Memo 

Groundwater Science Corp. May 16, 2016 



 

Roszell Pit Review 2015  5/2/2016  

 
Harden 
Environmental 

4622 Nassagaweya-Puslinch Townline   R.R. 1 Moffat Ontario Canada L0P 1J0 

Phone:  519.826.0099  fax: 519.826.9099 www.hardenv.com 
Groundwater Studies 

 
Geochemistry 

 

Phase I / II 
 

Regional Flow Studies 

 

Contaminant Investigations 

 

OMB Hearings 
 

Water Quality Sampling 

 
Monitoring 

 

Groundwater Protection 
Studies 

 

Groundwater Modelling 
 

Groundwater Mapping 

 

 

Our File:  0521 

 

May 2, 2016 

 

Township of Puslinch 

7404 Wellington Road 34  

Guelph, ON, N1H 6H9 

 

 

Attention: Karen Landry 

  CAO 

 

Dear Mrs. Landry: 

 

Regarding:  2015 Groundwater Monitoring Report, CBM, Roszell 

Road Pit 

We have conducted a review of the 2015 Groundwater Monitoring 

Report for the Roszell Pit operated by Canadian Building Materials 

(CBM).  There is a distinct temperature change observed in groundwater 

discharging to three streams.  It is our opinion the temperature change is 

caused by land use changes resulting from the extractive operations.  It 

is also our opinion that the temperature change exceeds the threshold of 

the allowable 1° C change.   The impact that the temperature change has 

on the overall stream temperature and the trout habitat has not been fully 

explored, however,  the ecological survey conducted by Dance 

Environmental Inc. found that there were fewer trout spawning beds 

(redds) in Tributary 7 in 2015/2016 than in previous years.  Dance had to 

return to complete the spawning survey due to uncharacteristically warm 

weather in December 2105.  On review of the amended Dance report, 

GWS Ecological And Forestry Services comments as follows; “ 

however, there appears to be a decline in spawning activity in Tributary 

#7 from 2012 to 2016 ( i.e. 5 redds in 2012 + 2013 to 2 redds in 2016). 

This tributary has more potential to be impacted by aggregate extraction 

than the Main Creek.”   



 Harden 

Environmental 

  File: 0521   

Roszell Pit Review 2015  5/2/2016 

Groundwater Levels 

We have compared the hydrographs of the Roszell Road monitoring wells with those of 

the Puslinch Groundwater Monitoring Network and two other licensed pits on Puslinch 

Township (Neubauer and Mill Creek Aggregates).  We observe that groundwater 

elevations in these examples are low in 2012 and the 2015 seasonal low is somewhat 

above that 2012 value.  In comparison, there are several wells at the Roszell Site that 

have historical lows in 2015 including BH4, BH5, BH6, BH10, DP5, BH16 and BH1.  

This groundwater basin may behave different during droughty conditions than others and 

the observation of these lows may not be related to the aggregate extraction.  However, 

extraction did occur during the same time period as the water level decline and as noted 

by Groundwater Science, may have influenced water levels. There have not been any 

groundwater elevation threshold exceedences in 2015.   

Groundwater Temperatures 

The impact on groundwater temperatures is difficult to interpret as thermographs are not 

prepared.  It also remains our opinion that temperature monitoring in the open hole 

introduces a high degree of uncertainty to the accuracy of the data.   The temperature 

measurements in BH16, located closest to the Test Pond have the greatest range (2.6 °C – 

19.5 °C) for all groundwater stations reported.  This is the best indicator of thermal 

changes to groundwater downgradient of a body of open water. 

Surface Water Temperatures 

Three surface water stations are exhibiting increased temperatures.  The graphs for 

stations SW6, SW8 and SW12 have been attached and upon inspection it can be readily 

recognized that a change in temperature range has occurred.   

Surface Water 

Station 

Month of 

Maximum 

Temp 

Month of 

Minimum 

Temp 

Pre Extraction 

Range 

(° C) 

Post 

Extraction 

Range 

(° C) 

SW6 October April 8 – 9.5 6 -13 

SW8 January  July 8.5 – 9.5 8.5 – 11 

SW12 September April 7.5 – 10.5 6.2 -12 

Note:  Dates and temperatures are estimated from graphs. 



 Harden 

Environmental 

  File: 0521   

Roszell Pit Review 2015  5/2/2016 

The locations of the surface water stations relative to pit activities are shown on Figure 1.   

The minimum and maximum temperatures at these stations do not coincide with 

minimum and maximum air temperatures which generally occur in July/August and 

January/February.  The temperatures therefore are reflective of other thermal processes 

upgradient of the monitoring station.  This is likely a response to thermal convection 

through the unsaturated zone somewhat upgradient of the monitoring station.    Given the 

timing offset, the heating and cooling cycle is likely a response to conductive heating and 

cooling occurring on the plateau above the monitoring station.    

The observed increase in temperature range indicates greater exposure to atmospheric 

temperatures and/or solar radiation.  This exposure will occur where the water table is 

either in direct contact with atmospheric temperatures or when the unsaturated zone 

thickness is decreased.  Both of these conditions have occurred at the site.  

The threshold for the initiation of mitigation is a 1°C increase as measured any of the 

following stations:  SW5, SW6, SW8 and SW10 (Blackport Hydrogeology 2009, 

Groundwater Monitoring Program, Roszell Pit, Preston Sand and Gravel Ltd.).  The data 

presented clearly shows a thermal impact of at least 1°C at station SW6 and potentially at 

SW8.   

The Ecological and Aquatic Monitoring Report prepared by Dance Environmental Inc. 

(2015) did not find redds in Tributary 7 in the fall of 2015.  This is not consistent with 

previous years and was attributed to warmer atmospheric temperatures in December 

2015.   A return to Tributary 7 by Dance Environmental in January 2016 yielded 2 redds, 

down from five observed in both 2012 and 2014.   

Summary 

The groundwater levels in several groundwater monitors were lower in 2015 than 

observed historically.  Although below-water-table extraction commenced in 2015 the 

distribution of the observed low water levels (occurring upgradient, downgradient and 

cross gradient to the pit ponds) does not readily point to extractive activities as having a 

significant role, but cannot be discounted entirely. 

Surface water temperatures at three surface water stations are exhibiting a temperature 

increase that is likely caused by the pit activities.  The increased range in temperature 

exceeds that allowable by the approved thresholds.  The Ministry of Natural Resources 

and Forestry should be made aware that this has been noted by the Township and 

discussions regarding the implication and potential mitigation should be initiated. 

 



 Harden 

Environmental 

  File: 0521   

Roszell Pit Review 2015  5/2/2016 

Sincerely,  

 

Harden Environmental Services Ltd. 

 

 

Stan Denhoed, M.Sc.,P.Eng. 

Senior Hydrogeologist 

 

  

 











Providing Professional Services 

Memo 
To : Colin Evans Date : May 16, 2016 

 CBM Aggregates. Re. : Temperature Monitoring Results 

From : Andrew Pentney  2015 Monitoring Program  

CC :  Project : Roszell Road Pit 
 

As requested, we are providing information and discussion in response to the review 
comments provided by Harden Environmental Services Ltd. (Harden) in a letter dated 
May 2, 2016, and, the associated cover letter provided by the Township of Puslinch dated 
May 5, 2016. 

In the review Harden notes that, as discussed in the 2013, 2014 and 2015 annual reports, 
surface water temperature increases at stations SW6 and SW8 have been observed. The 
Harden review states “The threshold for the initiation of mitigation is a 1° C increase as 
measured any of the following stations: SW5, SW6, SW8 and SW10 (Blackport 
Hydrogeology 2009, Groundwater Monitoring Program, Roszell Pit, Preston Sand and 
Gravel Ltd.)”. Further, the review states that (presumably based on that threshold 
interpretation) “It is also our opinion that the temperature change exceeds the allowable 
1° C change”. This is reflected in the Township of Puslinch cover letter, which states 
“There is an apparent breach of a temperature threshold”. 

The Harden interpretation and conclusions with regard to temperature thresholds at SW6 
and SW8 contradict the discussions and conclusions presented in the 2013, 2014 and 
2015 annual monitoring reports. Although we agree some changes have occurred and are 
open to discussing the monitoring results and most appropriate path forward to determine 
if there are any ecological concerns and to ensure no significant impacts occur to 
ecological features; we disagree with Harden’s statements regarding the defined 
thresholds, threshold response and threshold exceedance. 

As reported in the annual monitoring reports provided for the last 3 years, surface water 
temperature changes have been noted at SW6 (beginning in 2013) and most recently at 
SW8 (beginning in 2015). Both of these locations represent spot upwelling areas at the 
base of the river valley slope, and which form part of the source of 2 tributary systems 
which flow toward the Speed River. 

The issue of temperature change at location SW6 was first noted in 2013 and discussed in 
the 2013 annual monitoring report (dated April 2014). As stated in that report (page 9) 
The trigger mechanisms developed for the site include the following: Surface water 
temperature increase at SW5, SW6, SW8 or SW10 of 1 degree Celsius beyond the natural 
range (defined as the maximum 7-day average temperature observed prior to below 

Groundwater 
Science Corp. 

328 Daleview Place, 
Waterloo, ON  N2L 5M5 

Phone: (519) 746-6916 
groundwaterscience.ca 



Page 2  March 28, 2016 

water table extraction). Below water table extraction operations at the site began in 
March 2014. According to a strict interpretation of the trigger mechanisms, the 
temperature increase noted in 2013 became part of the “background” data set. A 
download was completed in early May 2016, an updated temperature graph is attached 
for reference. Temperatures at SW6 have moderated somewhat since 2013 and currently 
remain below 11.9 degrees Celsius. It is our understanding that the temperatures at SW6 
remain well within the range considered suitable for trout habitat. 

The 2013 annual monitoring report also states “Although the temperature at SW6 
measured in 2013 appears to be more than 1 degree Celsius beyond that previously 
observed at that location, it remains well within the natural range of other surface water 
locations within this area. In addition, extraction in 2013 was above the water table. We 
also note that SW6 is not downgradient of the test pond. Although the change noted at 
SW6 does not meet all of the criteria for a Threshold Response (e.g. occurrence relative 
to below water extraction), the general response implemented at this time follows the 
Action Response Protocol. To date some corrective action has been taken at the 
installation location, Dance Environmental Inc. has been consulted regarding potential 
for related ecological issues; and, data is being verified”.  

As stated in the 2009 monitoring program summary “…groundwater or surface water 
related Trigger Mechanisms are proposed as indicators that additional investigation 
and/or mitigation measures may be needed to ensure impacts to potential sensitive 
receptors remains insignificant”. Contrary to the Harden assertion, a threshold 
exceedance does not necessarily initiate mitigation measures. In response to the 
temperature change at SW6 we have investigated the monitoring station further to 
confirm data, installed additional monitoring stations (SW7 and SW9), reviewed the data 
with Dance Environmental Inc. to determine the potential impact to the environment, 
and, provided notification and discussion in the annual reports.  

With regard to temperatures observed at SW8, the 2015 annual report states the 
following:  

A similar trend may be beginning at location SW8, with an increase in 
temperature noted at the end of 2015. Historical manual temperature 
measurements have at times indicated a larger temperature range than the 
datalogger data. Previous high temperatures recorded by the datalogger range in 
the 9.5 to 9.6 degree Celsius range, and excluding two potential extraneous data 
points, the manual measurements indicate a high in the 10 degree Celsius range. 
The last temperature data available in 2015 indicates a temperature of 10.5 
degrees Celsius. Therefore this location may be approaching the “trigger” level 
identified for this location. Downstream temperatures at SW9 are similar to SW7 
and also indicate a tighter “range” and lower maximum than observed within the 
main tributary at SW3 and SW4. Continued temperature monitoring and 
examination is appropriate. 

Dance Environmental Inc., continues to review the temperature monitoring 
results at SW6, and SW8 and has indicated that there is no imminent ecological 
impact suggested by the potential change in temperate noted. 



Page 3  March 28, 2016 

As stated in the 2015 annual report, it is our interpretation that the temperatures observed 
in 2015 approached but did not exceed the temperature threshold. An updated 
temperature graph for SW8 is also attached for reference. The temperatures observed 
remain below 10.8 degrees Celsius, again within the threshold limit of 11 degrees Celsius 
and well within the range considered suitable for trout habitat. 

Similar to the situation at SW8 we have proactively dealt with the situation in a way 
consistent with the prescribed trigger response. This includes investigating the 
monitoring station further to confirm data, installed additional monitoring stations, 
reviewed the data with Dance Environmental Inc. to determine the potential impact to the 
environment, and, provided notification and discussion in the annual reports. 

We note that the threshold of 1 degree Celsius was set based on, and may be more 
appropriate for, a typical approach for a cold water stream such as the main creek, where 
surface water temperatures vary naturally much closer to the limits associated with trout 
habitat. We suggest that the threshold limit for the spot discharges be further discussed 
with review agencies to ensure the environmental response and protection is appropriate 
for this site. 

 

Sincerely, 

 
 

 
 
Andrew Pentney, P.Geo. 
Senior Hydrogeologist 
Groundwater Science Corp. 
 
Attached:  SW6 Temperature Plot (update May 16, 2016) 
  SW8 Temperature Plot (update May 16, 2016) 

 



CBM Aggregates
Roszell Road Pit

SW6 Temperature Plot
update May 16, 2016

Groundwater Science Corp.
Monitoring Program

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

1‐Jan‐05 1‐Jan‐06 1‐Jan‐07 1‐Jan‐08 1‐Jan‐09 1‐Jan‐10 1‐Jan‐11 1‐Jan‐12 1‐Jan‐13 1‐Jan‐14 1‐Jan‐15 1‐Jan‐16 1‐Jan‐17

W
at
er
 T
em

pe
ra
tu
re
 (C

)

Datalogger Measurements

Manual Measurements



CBM Aggregates
Roszell Road Pit

SW8 Temperature Plot
update May 16, 2016

Groundwater Science Corp.
Monitoring Program

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

1‐Jan‐05 1‐Jan‐06 1‐Jan‐07 1‐Jan‐08 1‐Jan‐09 1‐Jan‐10 1‐Jan‐11 1‐Jan‐12 1‐Jan‐13 1‐Jan‐14 1‐Jan‐15 1‐Jan‐16 1‐Jan‐17

W
at
er
 T
em

pe
ra
tu
re
 (C

)

Datalogger Measurements

Manual Measurements



 
  
 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix B 

 
OMB Case No. PL090122 - Statement of Agreed Facts 

November 30, 2009 



Ontario Municipal Board Case No. PL090122

HYDROGEOLOGY EXPERTS MEETING
STATEMENT OF AGREED FACTS
PRESTON SAND & GRAVEL COMPANY LIMITED
PROPOSED ROSZELL PIT
OMB Case No. PL090122
November 30, 2009



HYDROGEOLOGY EXPERTS MEETING
STATEMENT OF AGREED FACTS
PRESTON SAND & GRAVEL COMPANY LIMITED
PROPOSED ROSZELL PIT
OMB CASE NO. PL090122
NOVEMBER 30, 2009  

1

Meeting Date / Time: November 27, 2009 / 9:00am

Location: Preston Sand & Gravel Company Limited
669 Charles Street East
Kitchener, ON  N2H 6S9

Attendees: PRESTON SAND & GRAVEL COMPANY LIMITED
REPRESENTATIVES:
Ray Blackport (Blackport Hydrogeology Inc.)
Andrew Pentney (Groundwater Science Corp.)
Jim Graham (Waterloo Numerical Modelling Corp.)

TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH REPRESENTATIVE:
Stan Denhoed (Harden Environmental Services Ltd.)

Absentees: None

Distribution: Signatories

c.c. Jeffrey J. Wilker, Thomson, Rogers
Rob Stovel, Stovel and Associates

A meeting of hydrogeology expert witnesses was held on Friday, November 27, 2009 with
respect to the above-listed Ontario Municipal Board (OMB) hearing issue (Case No. PL090122).

The objective of the hydrogeology expert witnesses meeting was to identify and discuss specific
groundwater issues as related to the Issues List and thereby determine the scope of issues to
be presented before the Board.

The Issues List identified the following question for the Board regarding hydrogeology and
groundwater resources (with two alternate wordings provided):

Schedule "B": Do the proposed aggregate site plans adequately provide and secure
protection of groundwater resources, wetlands, and the Speed River system?

Schedule "D": Do the proposed aggregate site plans adequately provide and secure
protection of groundwater resources, Provincially Significant Wetlands, and the Speed
River?

Following are statements on matters discussed, and agreements reached, at the hydrogeology
expert witnesses meeting.



HYDROGEOLOGY EXPERTS MEETING
STATEMENT OF AGREED FACTS
PRESTON SAND & GRAVEL COMPANY LIMITED
PROPOSED ROSZELL PIT
OMB CASE NO. PL090122
NOVEMBER 30, 2009  

2

AGREED FACTS AND OPINION

Mr. Denhoed stated that in his opinion the last remaining issue can be summarized as:

Is there a way to adjust extraction phasing and Site Plan notes, specific to the 120 m
initial setback area between Lake 1 and the west Licence boundary, to provide some
additional protection to natural environment features regarding thermal impacts?

The specific issue was discussed, including aspects of the proposed extraction phasing,
monitoring program requirements, potential for thermal impacts, and, the Site Plan notes.

Mr. Graham attended the meeting to answer any specific modelling questions, however no
modelling questions arose during the discussions.

The following four points agreement was reached as a resolution to the stated issue:

1. The 120 m below water table setback area referenced on the Site Plan (Page 3 of 6,
General Controls, Part D below water extraction, No. 3), and, within the Groundwater
Monitoring Program (Section 1.1, item No. 14), be shown as a "hatched" area on the
Operational Phasing Plan (page 3 of 6). The Site Plan note should also state that no below
water table extraction should occur in this "hatched" area until the thermal monitoring
program recommendations regarding final setback distances are approved by MNR in
consultation with other agencies.

Figure A1, included with this Statement of Agreed Facts, shows the general area to be
denoted on the Site Plan.

The recommended wording for the Site Plan Note (replaces note Page 3 of 6, General
Controls, Part D below water extraction, No. 3) is:

3. As noted in the Hydrogeologic Recommendations, no below water table
extraction should occur within 120 m of the west licence boundary, as shown on
the Operational Phasing Plan, until the thermal monitoring program
recommendations regarding final setback distances are approved by MNR in
consultation with other agencies

2. During Phase B or C and prior to below water table extraction (Phase D), a rectangular "test
pond" should be dug in the northwest portion of Lake 1 to allow the thermal monitoring



HYDROGEOLOGY EXPERTS MEETING
STATEMENT OF AGREED FACTS
PRESTON SAND & GRAVEL COMPANY LIMITED
PROPOSED ROSZELL PIT
OMB CASE NO. PL090122
NOVEMBER 30, 2009  

3

program to commence. Additional mitigation measures should also be considered at this
time to implement in the unexpected situation where thermal monitoring indicates impacts
approach the west licence boundary, or, thermal trigger thresholds are triggered. Mitigation
measures are discussed in more detail in Item No. 4 of this Statement of Agreed Facts.

The "test pond" would be dug with the long axis perpendicular to the groundwater flow
system, approximately 30 m wide, 160 m long and to the full depth of the resource. The
concept is to establish a pond, measure the impact and if needed, implement mitigation
measures while the pond is still within an initial stage so that controls, if needed, would be
more effective. The "test pond" is also shown on the attached Figure A1, this "test pond"
location should be denoted on the Site Plan (e.g. on the Operational Plan, Page 2 of 6).

This "test pond" would also be the starting point for below water table extraction within the
Lake 1 area of Phase D, and would be in place for over 1 year prior to Phase D. The "test
pond" would also be over 200 m from any upgradient natural environment features,
therefore establishing the "test pond" eliminates the need for the reference to distance and
timing in Note 2, Page 3 of 6, General Controls, Part D below water extraction. In addition, a
Site Plan note to allow the pond to be established in Phase A, B or C is needed.

The following Site Plan Note changes are recommended as a result of the agreement to
establish the "test pond":

Page 2 of 6, Operational Plan (above water extraction):

2. Extraction will proceed in two lifts. The first lift will be above the water
table. The second lift will be below the water table. The "test pond" will be
established during Phase A, B or C, and, at least 1 year prior to Phase D.

Page 3 of 6, Operational Phasing (below water extraction):

General Controls, Part D below water extraction:

1. Initial extraction of the "test pond" will occur during wet seasonal
conditions (e.g. spring or fall).

2. Subsequent below water table extraction will proceed from the test pond.

3. The thermal monitoring plan specific to the 120 m setback area, and associated with the
"test pond" was confirmed to include groundwater monitors aligned along the flow system
and downgradient of the "test pond", surface water locations at the springs, and, DP2.
Figure A2, included with this summary, shows the conceptual monitoring program that could
be implemented, depending on conditions in the field and that may arise due to operations.



HYDROGEOLOGY EXPERTS MEETING
STATEMENT OF AGREED FACTS
PRESTON SAND & GRAVEL COMPANY LIMITED
PROPOSED ROSZELL PIT
OMB CASE NO. PL090122
NOVEMBER 30, 2009  

4

It was confirmed that the thermal monitoring program recommendations would need to meet
the approval of MNR, in consultation with other agencies, before any below water table
extraction could occur within the 120 m setback.

No changes to the Site Plan are needed as a result of this agreement. The monitoring
program (which is a separate document) will be updated, along with provisions noted in item
number 4 (below).

It is noted that the Hydrogeological Recommendations are to be included under the general
heading of Technical Recommendations on the Site Plan.

4. Mitigation measures that should be considered in the unexpected case that thermal impacts
from the "test pond" are observed approaching the licence boundary such that thermal
trigger thresholds are reached, include the following:

• Placing silt along the west (downgradient) pond edge in an incremental manner to slow
the velocity of water flow from the pond to the groundwater system. This would create
greater travel times and thereby reduce thermal impact. This mitigation measure would
be implemented on an incremental basis in coordination with water level monitoring to
ensure water levels and hydraulic gradients are maintained within seasonal ranges, and,
therefore that groundwater flow volumes toward discharge areas are not changed
significantly (i.e. beyond seasonal ranges as observed at the site).

• Backfill "test pond" with sand and gravel from on-site.

These measures should be incorporated into Section 1.3 of the Groundwater Monitoring
Program document, with specific reference to the "test pond".

No changes to the Site Plan are needed as a result of this agreement.

Based on the discussions, the proposed resolutions outlined above in items 1 to 4 fully resolve
the hydrogeology and groundwater resources issues relate to this Board Hearing, including both
alternative versions provided on the Issues List in Schedule B and D.

The signatories agree, with respect to hydrogeology or groundwater resources, that there are no
remaining issues to be addressed at the hearing.



HYDROGEOLOGY EXPERTS MEETING
STATEMENT OF AGREED FACTS
PRESTON SAND & GRAVEL COMPANY LIMITED
PROPOSED ROSZELL PIT
OMB CASE NO. PL090122
NOVEMBER 30, 2009  

5

AREAS of DISAGREEMENT

There are no areas of disagreement.

SIGNATORIES

The following signatories confirm their agreement with the foregoing statement on issues.

                                         09-11-30                         
Ray Blackport, M.Sc., P.Geo. Date (YY-MM-DD)
Blackport Hydrogeology Inc.

                                                                                    09-11-30          
Andrew Pentney, P.Geo. Date (YY-MM-DD)
Groundwater Science Corp.

                                                                                    
                                                                                              09-12-01

Stan Denhoed, P.Eng. M.Sc. Date (YY-MM-DD)

Harden Environmental Services.



B l a c k p o r t
H Y D R O G E O L O G Y

I N C  

Owner
Typewritten Text
Figure A1

Owner
Rectangle



Owner
Rectangle

Owner
Typewritten Text
Figure A2





































































































































































































































Puslinch Fire and Rescue Service 
Monthly Report 
April/May 2016 

 
 

 

 

 

Do you have a person in your life who may 
be a hoarder?  Hoarding is a condition 
where a person has persistent difficulty 
discarding personal possessions. The large 
amount of possessions fill a home and 
prevent the normal use of the space.  
Hoarding brings distress and emotional 
health concerns. 

Why hoarding increases fire 
risks 

• Cooking is unsafe if flammable 
items are close to the stove or 
oven 

• Heating units may be placed on 
unstable surfaces. If heaters tip 
over into a pile, it can cause a fire. 

• Electrical wiring (cords) may be 
worn from the weight of the piles. 
Pests chew on the wires. Damaged 
wires can catch fire. 

• Open flames from smoking 
materials or candles in a home 
with excess clutter are very 
dangerous. 

• Blocked pathways and exits may 
hinder escape from a fire. 

How hoarding impacts first 
responders 

 
 
 
 
 
 

• Firefighters cannot move swiftly 
through a home filled with clutter. 

• Responders can get trapped in a 
home with blocked exits. Objects 
falling from piles can trap and 
injure them. 

• The weight of stored objects and 
the weight of water in a fire can 
cause collapse. 

• Firefighters and EMS personnel 
have difficulty providing medical 
care. Clutter also impedes the 
search for residents and pets. 

How can you help? 

1. Talking with a hoarder focus on 
safety not clutter. 

2. Help residents make a home safety 
and escape plan. Stress the 
importance of clear pathways and 
exits. Practise the plan often. 

3. Ensure smoke alarms are working 
and test them monthly. 

4. Reach out to community resources. 
Talk to your local fire department 
to alert them of your concerns. 
They will be able to connect you 
with a hoarding task force for 
additional help. 

 

. 

Significant Events/ Incidents/Trends 

 



 

REPORT MONTH: 2016 April  

  April 
Monthly 

Total 

April    
2016   
YTD 

April  
2015 
YTD 

April 
2014 
YTD 

April 
 $ Loss 

Monthly 

April 2016              
$ Loss YTD 

FIRE: Structure 0 3 6 4 $0 $3,123,000 
Vehicular 2 7 7 5 $1000 $66,000 
Grass and 
Bush 

1 5 3 1 $0 $0 

Other 0 1 0 0 0  
  Monthly 2016 YTD 2015 

YTD 
2014 
YTD 

   

Motor Vehicle Collisions  8 40 53 75    
Medical Assist  3 15 25 19    
Mutual Aid  1 2 6 4    
Carbon Monoxide  1 10 7 4    
Automatic Alarm  5 18 13 15    
Burning Complaints  1 2 2 6    
Incorrect Page  0 0 0 4    
Other  0 7 3 17    

TOTALS:  Monthly 2016 YTD 2015 
YTD 

2014 
YTD 

   

 22 110 145 110    
Estimated Total Dollar  
Loss Due to Fire 

 $1000 $3,189,000 $335,000 $583,000    

REPORT MONTH: 2016 May  

  May 
Monthly 

Total 

May   
2016   
YTD 

May   
2015 
YTD 

May   
2014 
YTD 

May 
 $ Loss 

Monthly 

May  2016             
$ Loss YTD 

FIRE: Structure 0 3 6 6 $0 $3,123,000 
Vehicular 1 8 8 6 $2000 $68,000 
Grass and 
Bush 

2 7 6 1 $0 $0 

Other 0 1 0 0 0  
  Monthly 2016 YTD 2015 

YTD 
2014 
YTD 

   

Motor Vehicle Collisions  9 49 64 84    
Medical Assist  7 22 32 23    
Mutual Aid  0 2 7 4    
Carbon Monoxide  0 10 7 6    
Automatic Alarm  3 21 13 16    
Burning Complaints  1 3 5 7    
Incorrect Page  0 0 0 4    
Other  1 8 3 8    

TOTALS:  Monthly 2016 YTD 2015 
YTD 

2014 
YTD 

   

 24 134 151 165    
Estimated Total Dollar 
Loss Due to Fire 

 $0 $3,191,000 $120,000 $345,000    



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Building Fire 2% 
Vehicle Fire 6% 

MVC 
37% 

Medical 16% Burning 
Complaints 2%  

Mutual Aid 1% 

CO/Alarms 23% 

Other 8% 

2016 YTD Emergency Calls 

Other Fire 1% 

Prevention & Public Education 2016 April/May  
Activity:  Monthly Total 2016 YTD 

Inspections 2 8 
Water Tank Inspection 6 31 
Investigations 0 10 
Emergency Planning 2 4 
Public Education Volunteer 4 8 
Public Education Paid 3 8 
Meeting 11 16 
Home Safe Home Campaign 0 0 

Grass Fire 5% 



Puslinch Fire and Rescue Service 
Monthly Report 
April/May 2016 

 
 

 

 

 

Professional Development 

Activity     Month   Day 

Master Fire Plan Review   March   31 

Master Fire Plan Review   June                01 

Medical     June   09 & 10 

Rural Water Shuttle    June   14 & 15 

Truck Maintenance Mike Mobile  June   22 

To be Determined    June   28 & 29 

Rural Water Shuttle    July   05 & 06

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70 Puslinch Fire Calls - 2009-2016 

Calls/Mth
12 per. Mov. Avg. (Calls/Mth)



Puslinch Fire and Rescue Service 
Monthly Report 
April/May 2016 

 
  Sept    

 

 

 

Aberfoyle School Emergency Preparedness Day 

 

 

 



 

April 30, 2016 Transport Truck Highway 401 Accident 

 



 

Barn Fire Research – Laird Road 

 

Transport Truck Rollover 401 Eastbound May 16, 2016 















1 
 

REPORT FIN-2016-016 
 

TO:   Mayor and Members of Council 

FROM:  Paul Creamer, Director of Finance/Treasurer 

MEETING DATE: June 15, 2016 

SUBJECT: 2015 Commodity Price Hedging Agreements Report  
 File No. A09 HED 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That Report FIN-2016-016 regarding 2015 Commodity Price Hedging Agreements 
Report be received.  

DISCUSSION 

Purpose  
 

The purpose of this report is to comply with the Treasurer’s reporting requirements as 
set out by Ontario Regulation 653/05. 

Background 
 
Section 7(1) of Ontario Regulation 653/05, as amended states that if a municipality has 
commodity price hedging agreements in place, the Treasurer of the municipality must 
prepare and present to Council once every fiscal year a detailed report on all of those 
agreements. The report must contain the following information: 
 

1. A statement about the status of the agreements during the period of the report, 
including a comparison of the expected and actual results of using the 
agreements. 

2. A statement by the Treasurer that all of the agreements entered into during the 
period of the report are consistent with the municipality’s statement of policies 
and goals related to the use of Commodity Price Hedging Agreements. 

3. Such other information as Council may require. 
4. Such other information as the Treasurer considers appropriate to include in the 

report.  
 
 



2 
 

The Township entered into hedging agreements for natural gas and electricity 
procurement through Local Authority Services Limited (LAS), a wholly owned subsidiary 
of the Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO). These agreements are as follows: 
 

 The Electricity Agency Appointment and Retainer Agreement dated September 
19, 2012 

 The Agency Appointment Agreement for Natural Gas dated January 11, 2006 
and revised on June 15, 2007 

 
The Commodity Price Hedging Policy was approved by Council in accordance with By-
law No. 56/12, attached as Schedule A to Report FIN-2016-016.  
 

Natural Gas Procurement Program 
 
The LAS Natural Gas Procurement Program currently includes 170+ participating 
organizations. An annual price (per m3) for all natural gas consumption is determined by 
LAS and reflects LAS’s completed gas purchases and expectations for spot market 
natural gas costs for the one-year period.  LAS purchases physical natural gas and 
provides it to all enrolled municipalities based on their consumption requirements.  

Electricity Procurement Program 
 

The LAS Electricity Procurement Program currently includes 130+ municipalities. LAS 
removes municipal accounts from government (default) pricing and instead purchases 
electricity forward price contracts for much of the municipality’s consumption.  

The Township has elected to continue with hedging 65% of the Township’s electricity 
requirements while the remaining 35% is purchased at spot market prices. The 65% 
hedge level chosen by the Township is the most common hedge level for LAS members 
(approximately 90% of the member’s hedge at this level) because it provides a sufficient 
amount of annual cost stability. The remaining 35% of Township consumption settles at 
spot market rates.  

Benefits of Hedging 
 

The goal of hedging is not to speculate on the future price of a commodity, but rather to 
fix its price to an agreed amount. Volatile shifts in utility pricing create significant 
challenges in maintaining utility budgets. This uncertainty in energy pricing can impact 
decision making and cost controllability for the Township. The LAS programs provide 
stable energy pricing which assists in maintaining the Council approved utility budget 
every year.  

 



3 
 

Risks of Hedging 

As mentioned above, utility costs can be volatile and this volatility can also include price 
decreases. Therefore, in any given year there is the possibility that the hedged cost may 
be higher than current market cost which would result in the agreement costing the 
Township more than it otherwise would have.  

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

Natural Gas  

The 2015 actual natural gas costs amounted to $18,495 and the 2015 budgeted natural 
gas costs amount to $19,240 as outlined below: 
 

Account  Department  2015 Actuals  2015 Budget 

01‐0020‐4202  Building  $1,565  $1,410 

01‐0030‐4202  Public Works  $4,264  $5,640 

01‐0040‐4202  Fire and Rescue  $1,601  $955 

01‐0070‐4202  PCC  $3,836  $3,270 

01‐0080‐4202  ORC  $5,211  $5,705 

01‐0100‐4202  Finance  $2,018  $2,260 

Total  $18,495  $19,240 
 

The Township utilized the LAS Natural Gas Procurement Program at the following 
commodity price rates:  

 November 1, 2014 to October 31, 2015 at a price of 16.9 cents/m3 (program fee 
of 0.0037 cents/m3 included).  

 November 1, 2015 to October 31, 2016 at a price of 14.9 cents/m3 (program fee 
of 0.0037 cents/m3 included).   

Outlined below is the commodity price rates charged by Union Gas compared to LAS 
from 2014 to present: 

 

 

 



4 
 

Date 
Union Gas Effective 

Commodity Price 
(cents/m3) 

LAS Effective 
Commodity 

Price (cents/m3) 
LAS Savings 

(Loss)  (cents/m3) 

Jan-16 9.4846 14.9 -7.4154 
Oct-15 11.0742 16.9 -5.8258 
Jul-15 11.1676 16.9 -5.7324 

Apr-15 11.1365 16.9 -5.7635 
Jan-15 18.9887 16.9 2.0887 
Oct-14 19.2103 15.9 3.3103 
Jul-14 22.5862 15.9 6.6862 

Apr-14 22.3894 15.9 6.4894 
Jan-14 13.3052 15.9 -2.5948 

Reference: http://www.ontarioenergyboard.ca/oeb/Consumers/Natural+Gas/Natural+Gas+Rates/Natural+Gas+Rates+-+Historical 

If LAS collects more revenue through the set program rate than is required to run the 
program, an amount is rebated back to members. The rebate provided is based on the 
quantity of natural gas consumed during the rebate period. There was a rebate of 
$674.09 for the period of November 1, 2013 to October 31, 2014. The rebate for 2015 
will be determined in 2016. 

The following table shows the savings/(loss) the Township incurred by hedging 65% of 
the natural gas rates:   

Month 
LAS Saving 
(Loss)/m3  Usage (m3) 

Hedged 
Share 

Township Savings/ 
(Loss) 

January  $0.0208870                14,580   65%  $197.95 

February  $0.0208870                15,493   65%  $210.34 

March  $0.0208870                16,378   65%  $222.36 

April  ‐$0.0576350                  8,590   65%  ‐$321.81 

May  ‐$0.0576350                  2,042   65%  ‐$76.50 

June  ‐$0.0576350                     771   65%  ‐$28.88 

July  ‐$0.0573240                     577   65%  ‐$21.50 

August  ‐$0.0573240                     769   65%  ‐$28.65 

September  ‐$0.0573240                     824   65%  ‐$30.70 

October  ‐$0.0582580                  2,581   65%  ‐$97.74 

November  ‐$0.0382580                  5,154   65%  ‐$128.17 

December  ‐$0.0382580                  7,208   65%  ‐$179.25 

Total  ‐$282.55 

Rebate  $674.09 

Total Savings/(Loss)  $391.54 



5 
 

 

The table above indicates that although the Township paid $282.55 more than it would 
have had it not hedged with LAS the Township still saved $391.54 by hedging the 
Natural Gas rates with LAS due to rebate issued by LAS.  

 

Electricity 

The 2015 actual electricity costs amounted to $66,456 and the 2015 budgeted electricity 
costs amount to $61,940 as outlined below: 
 

Account  Department  2015 Actuals  2015 Budget 

01‐0020‐4201  Building  $2,681  $2,215 

01‐0030‐4201  Public Works  $6,780  $5,600 

01‐0040‐4201  Fire and Rescue  $6,845  $4,845 

01‐0070‐4201  PCC  $20,075  $22,120 

01‐0080‐4201  ORC  $23,918  $21,930 

01‐0100‐4201  Finance  $6,157  $5,230 

Total  $66,456  $61,940 

 

The Township utilized the LAS Electricity Procurement Program at the following rates 
for 65% of the Township’s electricity:  

 2014 – 2.83 cents/kWh  
 2015 - 3.268 cents/kWh  
 2016 - 2.602 cents/kWh 

The Township obtained an Electricity Commodity Savings Review completed by LAS for 
the July 2014 to June 2015 period as outlined in Schedule C. The total actual electricity 
savings for the program for the Township of Puslinch amounted to $1,994 when 
compared to prevailing government TOU rates. The following table summarizes 
Schedule C – Hedge Accounts: 

 

 

 

 



6 
 

   July ‐ Dec 2014  Jan ‐ June 2015  Total 

Total Usage (kWh) 
   

195,861  
   

208,414     

           

Hedge Price  $0.0283  $0.0326    

LAS Program Hedge (kWh) 
   

134,333  
   

121,825     

Cost of Hedge  $3,801.62  $3,971.50    

           

Weighted Avg Spot Market Price ($/kWh)  $0.0212  $0.0250    

Cost of Spot Market Electricity  $1,305.84  $2,160.95    

           

Global Adjustment Market Charge ($/kWh)  $0.0757  $0.0657    

Global Adjustment Market Charge  $14,833.42  $13,688.94    

           

Avg LAS Price per KWh (incl. GA)  $0.1018  $0.0951    

Total Cost of LAS Program  $19,940.88  $19,821.39    

           

Comparable Time‐of‐Use (RPP) Cost ($/kWh)  $0.0982  $0.1018    

Comparable Time‐of‐Use (RPP) Cost – Note 1  $19,237.00  $21,223.00    

           

Township Savings/(Loss)  ‐$703.88  $1,401.61  $697.73 

Note 1 – Time-of-use rates used for each month are based on the rates for the month with the following 
split: 55% off-peak, 22.5% mid-peak, and 22.5% on-peak.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



7 
 

The next table summarizes the Townships Streetlight Accounts: 

  
July ‐ Dec 
2014 

Jan ‐ June 
2015  Total 

Total Usage (kWh)            115,246              113,750     

           

RPP Usage ‐ 1st Tier Price (kWh)              45,000                45,000     

RPP Usage ‐ 2st Tier Price (kWh)              70,246                68,750     

           

Avg Spot Market Price ($/kWh)  $0.0131  $0.0203    

Cost of Spot Purchase  $1,507.79  $2,306.58    

LAS Program Fee  $360.68  $363.40    

Total Cost of Spot Purchase (incl. LAS Program Fee)  $1,868.47  $2,669.98    

           

Global Adjustment Market Charge ($/kWh)  $0.0749  $0.0693    

Global Adjustment Market Charge  $8,627.89  $7,882.70    

           

Avg LAS Price per KWh (incl. GA)  $0.0911  $0.0928    

Total Cost of LAS Program  $10,496.36  $10,552.68    

           

Comparable Time‐of‐Use (RPP) Cost ($/kWh)  $0.0959  $0.0994    

Comparable Time‐of‐Use (RPP) Cost  $11,046.77  $11,302.32    

           

Township Savings/(Loss)*  $550.41  $749.64  $1,300.05 

*The difference between this figure and Schedule C is due to rounding    

 

  
Comparable 
RPP Cost 

Total Cost 
LAS 

Program 
Township 

Savings/(Loss) 
% 

Savings 

Hedge Accounts  $40,460.00  $39,762.27  $697.73  1.7% 

Streetlight 
Accounts  $22,349.09  $21,049.04  $1,300.05  5.8% 

Total  $62,809.09  $60,811.31  $1,997.78  3.2% 

 

The Township saved 3.2% in Electricity costs by hedging through LAS. In 2014 the 
Township saved $7,287. 

There are no rebates for the electricity program as LAS purchases a financial hedge for 
each participating municipality at a negotiated cost (per/kWh) and settles, as retailer, 
along with the spot market cost of power. 

 



8 
 

APPLICABLE LEGISLATION AND REQUIREMENTS  
 

Ontario Regulation 653/05, as amended of the Municipal Act, 2001 

ATTACHMENTS 
 
Schedule A – By-law No. 56/12 - Commodity Price Hedging Policy 
 
Schedule B – Treasurer’s Statement 
 
Schedule C – LAS Electricity Commodity Savings Review – July 2014 to June 2015 



Schedule A to Report FIN-2016-016 

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 

BY-LAW NUMBER 56/12 

Being a by-law to authorize the 
Township of Puslinch to establish a 
policy respecting Commodity Price 
Hedging for the Township of Puslinch. 

WHEREAS Council for the Corporation of the Township of Puslinch considers it 
desirable to establish a Commodity Price Hedging policy. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT Council does hereby enact the following 
as a By-law; 

1. THAT the Corporation of the Township of Puslinch does hereby adopt a
policy respecting Commodity Price Hedging as attached hereto and
marked as Schedule "A" to this By-law.

2. THAT this By-law shall take effect upon the date of passage.

READ A FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD TIME AND FINALLY PASSED THIS 19th DAY OF 
SEPTEMBER, 2012. 

Mayc5r Dennis Lever 

/jNfdv{.,J a_tvfAf 
Brenda Law, CAO/Clerk-Treasurer 









Puslinch LAS Electricity Commodity Cost Review (July 2014 - June 2015)

September 2015

Hedge Accounts
Jul-14 Aug-14 Sep-14 Oct-14 Nov-14 Dec-14 Jan-15 Feb-15 Mar-15 Apr-15 May-15 Jun-15

Total Usage (kWh) * See Note 1 28,947 26,981 18,136 22,599 40,308 58,890 42,973 30,237 45,777 30,267 28,443 30,717 404,273 Consumption (kWh)

Enrolled Accounts 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14

Hedge Price Including Program Fees ($/kWh) $0.0283 $0.0283 $0.0283 $0.0283 $0.0283 $0.0283 $0.0326 $0.0326 $0.0326 $0.0326 $0.0326 $0.0326

LAS Program Hedge (kWh) 24,106 22,320 22,896 22,171 22,752 20,088 23,267 22,896 18,618 21,564 22,259 13,221 256,158 Hedge (kWh)

Cost of Hedge Including Program Fees $682.19 $631.66 $647.96 $627.44 $643.88 $568.49 $758.50 $746.41 $606.95 $702.99 $725.65 $431.00 63%

Weighted Avg. Spot Market Price ($/kWh) $0.0237 $0.0221 $0.0155 $0.0071 $0.0165 $0.0224 $0.0296 $0.0512 $0.0256 $0.0165 $0.0154 $0.0153

Cost of Spot Market Electricity $114.74 $103.00 -$73.79 $3.04 $289.67 $869.17 $583.30 $375.84 $695.27 $143.59 $95.23 $267.69

Global Adjustment Market Charge ($/kWh) $0.0598 $0.0611 $0.0805 $0.0749 $0.0990 $0.0732 $0.0555 $0.0698 $0.0360 $0.0671 $0.0942 $0.0923

Total Cost LAS Program $2,528 $2,383 $2,034 $2,323 $4,924 $5,748 $3,727 $3,233 $2,950 $2,877 $3,500 $3,534

Avg LAS Price per kWh (incl. GA) $0.0873 $0.0883 $0.1122 $0.1028 $0.1222 $0.0976 $0.0867 $0.1069 $0.0644 $0.0951 $0.1231 $0.1150 $0.100 Average cost per kWh

Comparable Time-of-Use (RPP) Cost * See Note 2 $2,805 $2,614 $1,757 $2,190 $4,011 $5,860 $4,276 $3,009 $4,555 $3,012 $3,063 $3,308 $40,459.00 Total TOU Cost

Monthly Savings / (Cost) $277 $231 -$277 -$133 -$913 $111 $549 -$224 $1,605 $134 -$437 -$226 $696.88 Savings from LAS Enrollment

1.7%
LAS Savings Compared to TOU

Streetlight Accounts
Jul-14 Aug-14 Sep-14 Oct-14 Nov-14 Dec-14 Jan-15 Feb-15 Mar-15 Apr-15 May-15 Jun-15

Total Usage (kWh) 19,481 18,685 18,884 18,733 19,741 19,722 17,786 18,425 20,091 18,010 19,807 19,631 228,996 Consumption (kWh)

Enrolled Accounts 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10

RPP Usage - 1st Tier Price (kWh) 7,500.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 7,500.00

RPP Usage - 2nd Tier Price (kWh) 11,980.56 11,185.44 11,384.22 11,233.42 12,241.03 12,221.68 10,286.28 10,924.97 12,590.62 10,509.58 12,306.84 12,131.36

Average Spot Market Price - ($/kWh) * See Note 3 $0.0182 $0.0148 $0.0101 $0.0046 $0.0130 $0.0174 $0.0263 $0.0432 $0.0228 $0.0131 $0.0078 $0.0099

Cost of Spot Purchase (Including LAS Program Fee) $414.52 $335.65 $251.07 $146.50 $317.50 $403.23 $528.64 $856.71 $518.29 $295.80 $215.41 $255.13

Global Adjustment Market Charge ($/kWh) $0.0598 $0.0611 $0.0805 $0.0749 $0.0990 $0.0732 $0.0555 $0.0698 $0.0360 $0.0671 $0.0942 $0.0923

Total Cost LAS Program $1,579 $1,477 $1,771 $1,550 $2,272 $1,847 $1,516 $2,143 $1,242 $1,504 $2,081 $2,067

Avg LAS Price per kWh (incl. GA and LAS fee) $0.0811 $0.0791 $0.0938 $0.0827 $0.1151 $0.0936 $0.0852 $0.1163 $0.0618 $0.0835 $0.1051 $0.1053 $0.092 Average cost per kWh

Comparable RPP Cost * See Note 4 $1,855 $1,775 $1,795 $1,780 $1,921 $1,919 $1,719 $1,785 $1,957 $1,742 $2,059 $2,039 $22,346.09 Total RPP Cost

Monthly Savings / (Cost) $276 $297 $24 $230 -$351 $72 $204 -$357 $715 $238 -$22 -$28 $1,297.03 Savings from LAS Enrollment

5.8%
LAS Savings Compared to RPP

LAS - Total Monthly Savings / (Cost) $553 $529 -$253 $97 -$1,264 $183 $753 -$582 $2,320 $372 -$459 -$253

$1,994

Notes

1) We have assumed that all accounts are RPP/TOU eligible (i.e. under 250,000kWh/year consumption)

2) Time-of-use (TOU) rates used for each month are based on the rates for that month with the following split: 55% off-peak, 22.5% mid-peak., and 22.5% on-peak.

4) RPP rates for the period reviewed were: 8.6 / 10.1 cents/kWh - July to October 2014; 8.8/ 10.3 cents/kWh - November 2014 to April 2015, and 9.4 / 11 cents/kWh for May -July 2015.

Annual Program Savings / (Cost)

3) This price represents the average HOEP for the hours of operation of a typical streetlight account using an approved streetlight profile.

Schedule C to Report FIN-2016-016



REPORT ADM-2016-010 

TO:  Mayor and Members of Council 

FROM: Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk 

MEETING DATE:   June 15, 2016 

SUBJECT: Declaration of Vacancy - Councillor 
Our File:  C07 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That Report ADM-2016-010 regarding Declaration of Vacancy - Councillor be received; 
and 

That the office of Township Councillor formerly held by Wayne Stokley be declared 
vacant in accordance with Section 262 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001; and 

That Council adopt the Council Vacancy Policy attached as Schedule B to Report ADM-
2016-010; and 

That Council provide direction on the method to be used to fill the vacancy; and 

That staff report back to Council with a proposed Council Vacancy Policy for the 
position of Mayor.  

DISCUSSION 

Background 

The provisions regarding a vacancy on Council are outlined in Sections 259-263 of the 
Municipal Act, 2001 (the Act).  The Act stipulates that if the office of a member of 
Council becomes vacant as a result of death, the municipality must declare the seat to 
be vacant at one of its next two meetings.  As a result of the death of Township 
Councillor Wayne Stokley on May 29, 2016, the office of Township Councillor must be 
declared vacant at the June 15, 2016 Council meeting. 

Purpose 

The purpose of this Report is to have Council declare the seat on Council vacant and to 
obtain direction from Council on the process to be followed to fill the vacancy. 

Once Council has declared the seat to be vacant, the Act states that Council has 60 
days to select one of two options for filling the vacancy.  These options are: 



REPORT NO. ADM-2016-010 
Page 2 of 8 

1) Hold a by-election in accordance with the Municipal Elections Act, 1996, as
amended

2) Appoint an eligible voter to fill the vacant seat

There are a number of different factors to consider when determining whether to fill a 
vacancy through appointment or by-election including: 

• Proximity to the next regular election
• Cost
• Public interest
• Democratic process
• Time frames

Appointment 

Should Council wish to appoint an eligible voter to fill the vacant seat, it is 
recommended that Council adopt the Policy attached as Schedule B to provide for an 
accountable and transparent process for filling a vacancy on Township Council. 

Please note that should Council proceed with appointing an eligible voter the 
appointment is required to be made within 60 days of declaring the seat vacant.  

A notice regarding the vacancy on Council advising of Council’s intention to appoint an 
eligible voter would be posted on the Township’s website and in the local newspaper. 

No sooner than fourteen (14) days after posting notice, staff would conduct an 
information session for potential nominees briefly outlining the roles and responsibilities 
of a Member of Council.   

In accordance with the proposed policy, a nominee is required to complete and sign a 
“Council Vacancy - Consent of Nominee” Form and a “Declaration of Qualification”. 

The process of voting and selecting a nominee is detailed in the proposed policy 
attached as Schedule B to this Report. 

As noted above, the process for making an appointment needs to be completed within 
sixty (60) days of declaring the seat vacant (Sunday, August 14, 2016).  Should Council 
elect to proceed by way of appointment it is recommended that the selection of the 
nominee be completed at the Council meeting to be held on August 10, 2016.  Council 
could also hold a Special Meeting on an earlier date to complete the appointment 
process, however this reduces the time provided for an eligible elector to consider their 
interest in the position and to submit the appropriate forms.   

Pros 

• Earlier filling of vacancy
• Costs



REPORT NO. ADM-2016-010 
Page 3 of 8 

• Less impact on staff resources
• Vacancy is filled prior to 2017 Budget deliberations

Cons 

• Summer is not the ideal time to invite interest from eligible nominees
• Vacancy is not filled through the democratic process of an election

By-election 

The process to fill a vacancy by a by-election is prescribed in the Municipal Elections 
Act, and a by-election is to be conducted as far as possible in the same way as a 
regular election. 

By declaring the office vacant on June 15, 2016, the decision to pass a by-law to 
authorize a by-election can be made by Council as early as June 15, 2016 but no later 
than August 14, 2016 (Sunday).  Sample dates for the conduct of a by-election are 
provided in this report along with some of the pros and cons for each selection. 

The Clerk is responsible to establish nomination day to be on a day not more than 60 
days after Council passes the by-law requiring the by-election.  The nomination period 
for candidates to file nominations begins the day after Council passes the by-law and 
ends at 2:00 p.m. on nomination day.  There is no prescribed minimum time frame for a 
nomination period for a by-election and voting day is 45 days after Nomination Day. 

Sample dates for holding a by-election and suggested motions for each are as follows: 

Sample 1 – Voting Day – Monday, September 26, 2016 

Wednesday, June 15, 2016 Declaration of Vacancy 
Wednesday, June 15, 2016 Regular Council Meeting 

(Council to pass a by-law to conduct a by-election 
within 60 days of Declaring the Seat Vacant – same 
day) 

Thursday, June 16, 2016  Nomination period begins 
Friday, August 12, 2016  Nomination Day  

(no more than 60 days from passing By-law – 58 
days) 

Saturday, September 17, 2016 Advance Voting Day 
Monday, September 26, 2016 Voting Day (45 Days after Nomination Day) 



REPORT NO. ADM-2016-010 
Page 4 of 8 

Draft Motion 

That the office of Township Councillor formerly held by Wayne Stokley, be declared 
vacant in accordance with Section 262 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001; and 

That Council pass a By-law requiring that the Township Council vacancy be filled by 
way of a by-election; and  

That September 26, 2016 be declared as Voting Day. 

Pros 

• Earlier filling of vacancy through the democratic process
• No conflict with a Provincial or Federal election
• Voting Day after summer
• Voting Day prior to commencement of 2017 Budget deliberations

Cons 

• Candidates campaign period would occur primarily during the summer
• Costs
• Tight time frame

Sample 2 – Voting Day – Monday, October 17, 2016 

Wednesday, June 15, 2016 Declaration of Vacancy 
Wednesday, July 20, 2016 Regular Council Meeting 

(Council to pass a by-law to conduct a by-election 
within 60 days of Declaring the seat vacant - 35 days) 

Thursday, July 21, 2016  Nomination period begins 
Friday, September 2, 2016  Nomination Day 

(no more than 60 days from passing the by-law – 44 
days) 

Saturday, October 8, 2016  Advance Voting Day (Thanksgiving Weekend) 
Monday, October 17, 2016  Voting Day (45 Days after Nomination Day) 

Draft Motion 

That the office of Township Councillor formerly held by Wayne Stokley, be declared 
vacant in accordance with Section 262 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001; and 

That Council pass a By-law requiring that the Township Council vacancy be filled by 
way of a by-election; and  

That October 17, 2016 be declared as Voting Day. 



REPORT NO. ADM-2016-010 
Page 5 of 8 

Pros 

• Filling of vacancy through the democratic process
• No conflict with a Provincial or Federal election
• Less restrictive time-frame
• Voting Day prior to completion of 2017 Budget deliberations
• Candidates could campaign from July to October

Cons 

• Costs

Sample 3 – Voting Day – Monday, November 21, 2016 

Wednesday, June 15, 2016 Declaration of Vacancy 
Wednesday, August 10, 2016 Regular Council Meeting 

(Council to pass a by-law to conduct a by-election 
within 60 days of Declaring the seat vacant – 56 days) 

Thursday, August 11, 2016 Nomination period begins 
Friday, October 7, 2016  Nomination Day 

(no more than 60 days from passing the by-law – 58 
days) 

Saturday, November 12, 2016 Advance Voting 
Monday, November 21, 2016 Voting Day (45 Days after Nomination Day) 

Draft Motion 

That the office of Township Councillor formerly held by Wayne Stokley, be declared 
vacant in accordance with Section 262 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001; and 

That Council pass a By-law requiring that the Township Council vacancy be filled by 
way of a by-election; and  

That November 21, 2016 be declared as Voting Day. 

Pros 

• Filling of vacancy through the democratic process
• No conflict with a Provincial or Federal election
• Candidates could campaign from August to November



REPORT NO. ADM-2016-010 
Page 6 of 8 

Cons 

• The seat will remain vacant for a long period
• Costs
• Voting Day closer to the end of the 2017 Budget

Timing of Decision 

If Council does not proceed with making a decision at its meeting to be held on June 15, 
2016 with regard to filling the vacancy by appointment or through a by-election, it is 
recommended that a special meeting of Council be held on June 23, 2016 for this 
purpose. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

The costs of conducting a By-Election in the Township are similar to the costs for 
running an election as all positions on Council are elected at large. 

The costs of conducting the 2014 Municipal election were $52,000.  In 2015, the 
Township entered into an agreement with Dominion Voting for the provision of the use 
of vote tabulators for the 2018 election.  This agreement provides for the complimentary 
rental of tabulators for a by-election.  This results in an approximate reduction in 
election expenses of $5,000.00.  The Township also has an agreement with Datafix for 
the on-going maintenance and production of its Voters’ List which requires annual 
payments of $1,200.  It is estimated that the cost of a by-election will be $40,000.00 as 
there will be some additional reduction in costs for office supplies, professional 
development, ballots (French – no school board ballots), forms (French) and 
advertising. 

The Township’s election reserve would be used to fund a 2016 By-Election.  The 
election reserve has $23,000 at December 31, 2015 and $12,787 will be contributed in 
2016 as per the Approved 2016 Operating Budget, this results in an available balance 
of $35,787. The remaining $4,213 would create an overrun in the Elections cost centre; 
depending on the year-end corporate wide surplus/deficit this overrun may be funded 
through the Legal Contingency reserve.  

Should Council direct that a By-election be held and utilize funds from the election 
reserve it is recommended that the 2017 and 2018 Operating Budgets include a 
contribution in reserves in the amount of $27,500 which assumes a total Election cost of 
$55,000 in 2018. Therefore, the budget would increase by $14,713 in 2017. 

The administrative costs to fill the vacancy by appointment are estimated at $2,500.00. 

APPLICABLE LEGISLATION AND REQUIREMENTS 

Municipal Act, 2001 
Municipal Elections Act, 2006 



REPORT NO. ADM-2016-010 
Page 7 of 8 

SCHEDULES 

Schedule A  Sample By-law to require a By-Election 
Schedule B  Council Vacancy Policy 



REPORT NO. ADM-2016-010 
Page 8 of 8 

SCHEDULE A 

A By-law to require a By-Election to fill the vacancy for the Office 
of Township Councillor  

WHEREAS Section 259 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as amended 
establishes that the office of a member of Council of a municipality becomes vacant 
upon the death of a member; 

AND WHEREAS Section 262 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, as amended states that if 
the office of a member of Council becomes vacant upon the death of a member, that 
Council shall declare the office to be vacant, at either of its next two meetings; 

AND WHEREAS in accordance with section 262 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, 
Puslinch Township Council declared the office of Township Councillor to be vacant on 
June 15, 2016;  

AND WHEREAS Section 263 of the Municipal Act, 2001, as amended establishes that 
where a vacancy occurs in the office of a member of Council of a municipality, the 
Council may by by-law require that a by-election be held to fill the vacancy in the office 
of Township Councillor; 

NOW THEREFORE COUNCIL FOR THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH hereby enacts 
as follows: 

1. That a By-Election be held to fill the vacancy for the office of Township Councillor
in the Township of Puslinch, and such by-election to be conducted in accordance
with section 65 of the Municipal Elections Act.

READ A FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD TIME AND FINALLY PASSED THIS XXX DAY 
OF XXXX, 2016. 

__________________________ 
Mayor – Dennis Lever 

__________________________ 
Clerk – Karen Landry 



Policy No. 2016- 

Council Vacancy Policy 

Corporate Policy 

Page 1 

Purpose 

To establish an accountable and transparent process for filling a vacancy on Township Council. 

Scope 

This policy applies to any Office declared vacant on Township Council. 

Definition 

For the purpose of this policy: 

Lot - means a method of determination by placing the names of the nominees on equal size pieces of 

paper in a container with one name being drawn by the Clerk, or his/her designate. 

GENERAL 

In accordance with the Municipal Act, if a vacancy occurs within ninety (90) days before voting day of a 

regular election, the municipality is not required to fill a vacancy on Council. 

When a vacancy is declared and Council elects to proceed with the filling of the vacancy by appointment 

the following shall occur: 

1. In accordance with the Municipal Act, Council shall declare the seat to be vacant.

2. In accordance with the Municipal Act, Council shall make the appointment to fill the vacancy

within sixty (60) days of the Council declaring the vacancy.

3. The Township Clerk or his/her designate shall post a “Public Notice – Council Vacancy” on the

Township’s website and in the local newspaper.  The “Public Notice – Council Vacancy” shall

indicate Council’s intention to appoint a person to the vacancy and outline the process for filing a

nomination.

4. No sooner than fourteen (14) days after a “Public Notice – Council Vacancy” has been given, an

information session shall be conducted by staff for potential nominees.

5. A nominee must complete and sign a Council Vacancy - Consent of Nominee form and a

Declaration of Qualification, which will be available at the Information Session.

SCHEDULE "B"



Policy No. 2016- 

Council Vacancy Policy 

Corporate Policy 

Page 2 

6. The last day for submitting a nomination will be 2:00 p.m. on the Thursday prior to the Council 

meeting at which the appointment is scheduled to be made. 

 

7. Nominations will be posted to the Township website upon being certified by the Clerk. 

 

8. The vote to appoint a nominee shall occur at a Council meeting. 

 

9. At the Council meeting, the following shall take place: 

 

a) The Chair shall make a short statement of the purpose of the meeting and the general order 

of proceedings to be followed. 

 

b) The Clerk will provide the Chair a list of the names of those certified nominees who have 

completed the Council Vacancy - Consent of Nominee and Declaration of Qualification 

Forms. 

 

c) The Chair will call for a motion from Council in the following form: 

 “That the following persons, who have indicated in writing that they are legally qualified to 

hold the office of councillor and consented to accept the office if they are appointed to fill 

the vacancy of councillor, be considered for appointment to fill such vacancy.” 

 

d) Each nominee shall be afforded the opportunity to address Council for a period of not more 

than ten (10) minutes.  The order of speaking will be determined by lot.  The Clerk shall 

place the names of all nominees in a container and randomly draw the names. 

 

e) All nominees shall be asked the same four (4) questions which will be pre-determined 

based on input by Council. 

 

f) Nominees will be sequestered in an adjacent room until it is their time to answer the 

questions posed by Council.  Once a nominee has answered the questions, they may remain 

in the Council Chambers. 

 

g) Upon hearing all the submissions of the nominees, Council will proceed to vote as follows: 

 

i) Members of Council will vote by way of public vote. 

 

ii) The first round of voting will be to short list the nominees.  In the case of four (4) or 

more nominees, members of Council will select no more than their top three (3) 

nominees of their preference.  In the case of three (3)  nominees, members of Council 



Policy No. 2016- 

Council Vacancy Policy 

Corporate Policy 

Page 3 

will select no more than their top two (2) candidates of their preference.  In the case of 

two (2) nominees, second round voting procedures will apply. 

 

iii) The top three (3) nominees, or top (2) nominees, as the case may be, who receive the 

most votes will continue to the next round of voting.  All other nominees will be 

removed from further consideration. 

 

iv) The second round of voting, members of Council will select no more than one nominee 

of their preference.  Where the nominee receiving the greatest number of votes cast 

does not receive more than one half the votes of all members of Council, the nominee 

or nominees who received the fewest number of votes shall be excluded from the 

voting and the vote will be taken again by the Clerk and, if necessary, more than once, 

excluding in each successive vote the nominee or nominees who receive the fewest 

number of votes in the preceding vote, until the nominee receiving the greatest number 

of votes has also received more than one-half of the votes of the members of Council 

present and voting. 

 

v) Where the votes cast are equal for all the nominees and if: 

 

 There are three (3) nominees remaining, the Clerk shall by lot select one such 

nominee to be excluded from the subsequent voting 

 

 Only two (2) nominees remain, the tie shall be broken and the vacancy shall be 

filled by the nominee selected by lot, as conducted by the Clerk 

 

 vi) Where there are three (3) nominees remaining, and the votes cast are equal for two (2) 

nominees who received the fewest number of votes, the Clerk shall by lot select one 

such nominee to be excluded from the subsequent voting. 

 

 vii) A nominee who does not receive a vote shall be removed from further consideration. 

 

h) Upon conclusion of the voting, the Clerk will declare to be elected the nominee receiving 

the votes of more than one-half of the number of the members of Council present and 

voting or by lot as outlined in 9 (g). 

 

i) A by-law confirming the appointment shall be enacted by Council appointing the successful 

nominee to the office for the remainder of the term of Council. 

 











 

PLANNING REPORT  
for the TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 

Prepared by the County of Wellington Planning and Development Department 

DATE: June 3, 2016 
TO: Kelly Patzer, Development Coordinator 

Township of Puslinch 
FROM:  Sarah Wilhelm, Senior Planner 

County of Wellington 
SUBJECT: 2016 HOUSEKEEPING AMENDMENT TO ZONING BY-LAW 19/85 

Township-wide Zoning By-law Amendment 
ATTACHMENTS: Revised Table of Proposed Changes 

Amending By-law 
 
SUMMARY 
The purpose of this report is to respond to comments on the housekeeping amendment to the 
Township’s Zoning By-law. We are satisfied that the changes identified in the attached table 
appropriately address concerns raised during the circulation and at the public meeting. An amending by-
law is enclosed for Council’s consideration. We recommend approval of the housekeeping amendment. 

 
Thank you for your request to prepare a Draft Amending By-law for the housekeeping amendment. This 
report offers our planning opinion and draft amending by-law. 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The public meeting for the housekeeping amendment to the zoning by-law was held April 21, 2016. The 
meeting was well attended. We have received feedback on the amendment from members of the 
public, Planning and Development and Advisory Committee (PDAC) and Township Council. The purpose 
of this report is to provide our recommendations to address the comments raised for Council’s 
consideration. The proposed revisions have been reviewed with Robert Kelly, Chief Building Official and 
Kelly Patzer, Development Coordinator.  
 
COMMENTS  
The comments raised focus on the following topics: 
 

• Grading 
• Contractor’s yards 
• Mini Lakes  
• Accessory apartments 
• Farm help 
• Natural Environment Zone setbacks 

 
We have provided a response to each matter in the text which follows. For additional detail concerning 
we have attached a revised “Table of Proposed Changes” which details the original and post-public 
meeting changes to the housekeeping amendment. 
 



 
PLANNING REPORT for the TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH   
Housekeeping Amendment to Zoning By-law 19/85 
June 3, 2016   Page 2 

Grading 
We heard concerns about the proposed removal of clause 3(6)(b) of the zoning by-law dealing with 
“DUMPING”. We are in agreement with the comment and propose to retain the clause without changes 
at this time. The matter can be more fully addressed at the time of the preparation of the new 
Comprehensive Zoning By-law for the Township. 
 
Contractor’s Yard 
There were three comments related to Contractor’s Yards, including the need for: 
 

• definition of “Contractor’s Yard” 
• definition of “Contractor” 
• definition of screening and outdoor storage for contractor’s yards 

We agree that there is a need for a definition of “Contractor’s Yard” which is a permitted use in the 
Industrial Zone and recommend the following: 

“BUILDING OR CONTRACTOR’S YARD” means the use of land, buildings and structures by a 
general contractor, excavation contractor, landscaping contractor, building contractor, well 
drilling contractor or similar where vehicles, equipment and supplies are parked, stored and 
maintained for use in the construction and/or renovation trades. It does not include retail or 
wholesale sales, a temporary job construction site or any other use as defined by this by-law.  
Office use, as well as minor maintenance and assembly work normally considered to be 
accessory to the trade are permitted.”   

We do not find it necessary to define “Contractor” as the above definition builds in references to a range 
of contractors. We would note that a service trade is permitted as a home occupation provided it 
remains compatible with the surrounding areas as per Section 3(9) of the By-law.  

With respect to PDAC comments about defining screening requirements and outdoor storage for 
contractor’s yards, the by-law currently provides the following performance standards: 
 

• Industrial uses are subject to the requirements of Section 3(10)(b) planting strips where a 3 m 
area is required where an industrial use is adjacent to a residential zone 

• A service trade as a home occupation will be subject to the amended open storage regulations 
of 3(15) which require screening by a planting strip with an opaque fence, wall or other opaque 
barrier not less than 2.0 metres in height 

We do not recommend additional changes.  

Mini Lakes Definition 
Concerns were raised at the public meeting regarding determination of front lot line for corner lots, 
which is different in the Mini Lakes Zone. We feel that additional clarification would be beneficial, 
including the following additional text: 

“7B(5)(b) Site Width (Minimum) 
Notwithstanding the “Lot Frontage” definition of Section 2 of this By-law, “Site Width” means 
the horizontal distance between the side site lines measured along the site front line, but where 
the front site line is not a straight line or where the side site lines are not parallel, the site width 



 
PLANNING REPORT for the TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH   
Housekeeping Amendment to Zoning By-law 19/85 
June 3, 2016   Page 3 

is to be measured at the required minimum site front yard setback from and parallel to the 
chord of the site width, and for the purpose of this definition the chord of the site width is a 
straight line joining two points where the side site line intersections the site width. 
 
7B(6)(f) Front Lot Line 
“Front Lot Line” does not apply to “Site Width” which may be measured at either street line in 
the case of a corner lot.” 

Accessory Apartments 
Public and Council concerns with the new accessory apartment provisions related to the following: 
 

• Need for more flexibility with minimum lot area for accessory apartments 
• Impact of and small size of maximum allowable apartment area  
• Limitation of main floor area for accessory apartments in Estate Residential zones 

 
We were asked at the public meeting to give an indication of how many lots might be impacted by a 1 
acre lot minimum for accessory apartments in the Agricultural Zone. There are approximately: 
 

• 90 properties that have between 0.5 acres and 0.75 acres of Agricultural zoning on their lot  
• 281 properties that have between 0.75 acres and 1 acre of Agricultural zoning on their lot 
• 1, 066 properties that have 1 acre or more of Agricultural zoning on their lot 

 
We are in agreement with the comments and have removed the minimum lot area requirement from 
the Agricultural and Estate Residential zones as septic requirements will dictate the ability to 
accommodate an accessory apartment, regardless of lot size. 
 
The maximum apartment floor area of 1,076 sq. ft. (100 sq. m) has been removed and a 40% floor area 
maximum applied. The 592 sq. ft. (55 sq. m) floor area cap on the above grade portion of accessory 
apartments in the Estate Residential zones has been removed. Consistent with the Agricultural Zone 
provisions, a 40% floor area maximum has been applied.  
  
At PDAC’s request we have made an editorial change to the text prohibiting accessory apartments in a 
detached building or structure.  
 
Farm Help 
In their comments on the amendment, PDAC requested that the term “traditionally constructed” be 
removed, so that the only type of residential dwelling permitted for farm help is prefabricated, modular 
or a mobile home. We have no concerns with the request and have removed the term and strengthened 
the language. If a land owner wishes to seek approval for permanent farm help in the Township, the 
owner would need to seek zoning relief. 
 
Natural Environment Zone Setback 
There have been a high volume of minor variances to reduce the setback from the Natural Environment 
(NE) Zone. PDAC has requested that the housekeeping amendment address the matter.  
 

"3(25)(c) 
Notwithstanding the above, the setback from the Natural Environment (NE) Zone may be 
reduced to a distance that is supported by the Conservation Authority having jurisdiction 



 
PLANNING REPORT for the TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH   
Housekeeping Amendment to Zoning By-law 19/85 
June 3, 2016   Page 4 

pursuant to its authority provided under the Conservation Authorities Act, R.S.O. 1990. Where 
the Conservation Authority provides written approval for a reduced setback from the NE Zone 
an amendment to this By-law shall not be required.” 

 
We are in agreement and have added text underlined above to give the Conservation Authority the 
authority to reduce the setback without further amendment to the by-law. The By-law provides for 
Conservation Authority discretion to re-interpret the NE Zone boundary and this would extend such 
discretion to the setback from the limit of the NE Zone. 
 
PLANNING OPINION 
In our opinion, the proposed housekeeping amendment is consistent with the Provincial Policy 
Statement and generally conforms to the Provincial Growth Plan and the County Official Plan. 
Accordingly, we recommend the approval of the amending by-law. 
 
NEXT STEPS 
If the amending by-law is approved by Council, notification should be provided in accordance with the 
Planning Act. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted 
County of Wellington Planning and Development Department  
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Sarah Wilhelm, BES, MCIP, RPP 
Senior Planner  
 
c. Robert Kelly, Chief Building Official 



Table of Proposed Changes 
Township of Puslinch Housekeeping Amendment 
 
Definitions 

# DESCRIPTION By-law Reference Proposed Amendment to By-law Recommended Response  
1 LOT FRONTAGE 

DEFINITION FOR 
CUL-DE-SACS OR 
CURVED FRONTAGES 
• for clarification 

2(120) Definitions (a) “LOT FRONTAGE” means 
the horizontal distance between the side lot lines of a lot, such distance being measured along a line 
which is parallel to the front lot line of the lot at the minimum front yard depth required hereby on such 
lot. 
the horizontal distance between the side lot lines measured along the front lot line, but where the front 
lot line is not a straight line or where the side lot lines are not parallel, the lot frontage is to be 
measured by a line 6.0 m back from and parallel to the chord of the lot frontage, and for the purpose of 
this paragraph the chord of the lot frontage is a straight line joining the two points where the side lot 
lines intersect the front lot line. 

None required 

      
   “ILLUSTRATIONS OF DEFINITIONS AND PROVISIONS”  

Note: The diagrams and illustrations on the following pages are for the purposes of illustration only and do not 
form part of the zoning by-law. 

2 UNDERGROUND 
STRUCTURES 
• for clarification 
• new regulation for 

projections into 
required yards 

2(182) “STRUCTURE” means anything constructed or erected, the use of which requires location on or in the ground, 
or attached to something located on or in the ground, but does not include the permanent way of a railway, 
any paved surface located directly on the ground or sewage systems. 

None required 

 3(23)(a)vii Underground service structures such as sewage systems and firefighting tank reservoirs which do not project 
more than 2.0 metres into a required interior side yard or rear yard, and which do not project more than 3.0 m 
into a required front yard or exterior side yard. 

 

3 FRONT LOT LINE 
DEFINITION FOR 
CORNER LOTS 
• clarifies that 

shortest lot line is 
front lot line 

2(121) Definitions (a) “FRONT LOT 
LINE” means: 

(i) in the case of an interior lot, the street line of the lot the line dividing the lot from 
the street; 

None required 

    (ii) in the case of a corner lot, either street line of the lot, whereas the other street 
line shall be deemed an exterior side lot line the shorter lot line abutting a street; 
or  

 

4 BUILDING HEIGHT 
ILLUSTRATIONS 
• for clarification 

 “ILLUSTRATIONS OF DEFINITIONS AND PROVISIONS” 
Note: The diagrams and illustrations on the following pages are for the purposes of illustration only and do not 
form part of the zoning by-law. 

None required 

Original Text additions  shown in red underlined text 
Original text removals  shown in black strikeout text 
New text revisions post-public meeting shown 

in black bold text 
 



 

 
Table of Proposed Changes  2 
Township of Puslinch Housekeeping Amendment 
June 2016 Version    

Original Text additions  shown in red underlined text 
Original text removals  shown in black strikeout text 
New text revisions post-public meeting shown 

in black bold text 
 

 

General Provisions 

# DESCRIPTION By-law Reference Proposed Amendment to By-law Recommended Response  
5 SITE ALTERATION 

“DUMPING” 
3(6)  General 
Provisions 
Grading  

None • Concerns raised about removal 
• Recommend that Section be kept in 

By-law with no changes at this time 
 • dumping is dealt 

with under 
Municipal Act, 
Site Plan 
Agreement or Site 
Plan Control 

Dumping    

6 SEPARATION 
DISTANCE FOR 
GROUP HOMES 
• removal of 10 km 

separation 
distance  

3(7) General 
Provisions 

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this By-law to the contrary, a Group Home may be permitted in any 
single dwelling unit provided there is no Group Home or similar facility within 10 kilometres of the proposed 
facility and the dwelling unit must have has 20 square metres per person residing within the unit. Group Homes 
must be registered with the municipality as per Section 236 of Tthe Municipal Act, R.S.O 1980, Chapter 302. 

None required 

7 OPEN STORAGE 
• clarification of 

open storage 
requirements for 
home occupations 

• increase in height 
for screening from 
1.5 m to 2.0 m 

3(9) General 
Provisions 

(f) No home occupation shall create or become a public nuisance, particularly with regard to noise, traffic, 
emissions, parking or radio or television interference, . nor shall any open storage be permitted in 
conjunction with a home occupation except in accordance with the provisions of Subsection 3(15) 
hereof.  

None required 

  (h) Any open storage permitted in conjunction with a home occupation shall comply with the provisions of 
Section 3(15). 

 

 3(15) General 
Provisions 

(a) OPEN STORAGE REGULATIONS  

    (iv) No open storage area shall be visible from any street or from any adjacent lot, where such 
adjacent lot is located in a zone other than a Commercial Zone or an Industrial Zone, and to this 
end any open storage area shall be screened, wherever necessary in order to comply with this 
provision, by a planting strip containing an opaque fence, wall or other opaque barrier not less 
than 1.5 2.0 metres in height, except that this provision shall not apply to any open storage area 
accessory to an agricultural use or to the outside display and sale of goods and materials in 
conjunction with a permitted commercial use. 

 



 

 
Table of Proposed Changes  3 
Township of Puslinch Housekeeping Amendment 
June 2016 Version    

Original Text additions  shown in red underlined text 
Original text removals  shown in black strikeout text 
New text revisions post-public meeting shown 

in black bold text 
 

 

General Provisions 

# DESCRIPTION By-law Reference Proposed Amendment to By-law Recommended Response  
8 CONTRACTOR’S 

YARD NOT A HOME 
OCCUPATION 
• for clarification 

3(9) General 
Provisions 

(g) None of the following uses shall be considered home occupations except where such uses are 
specifically permitted herein:  

None required 
• We note that a service trade is a 

permitted as a home occupation 
provided it “remains compatible with 
the surrounding areas” per Section 
3(9) of the By-law 

   (x) a contractor’s yard 

 • New definition 
of a building or 
contractor’s yard 

2 Definitions (    ) “BUILDING OR CONTRACTOR’S YARD” means the use of land, buildings and structures by a general 
contractor, excavation contractor, landscaping contractor, building contractor, well drilling contractor 
or similar where vehicles, equipment and supplies are parked, stored and maintained for use in the 
construction and/or renovation trades. It does not include retail or wholesale sales, a temporary job 
construction site or any other use as defined by this by-law.  Office use, as well as minor maintenance 
and assembly work normally considered to be accessory to the trade are permitted.  

• PDAC, public and Council raised 
concerns with lack of definition 

• Recommend addition of new 
definition of building or contractor’s 
yard  

9 ONE MAIN 
BUILDING PER LOT 
• New provision to 

clarify no more 
than one main 
building per lot 
outside of 
identified zones 

• Renaming of 
provision title 

3 General 
Provisions 

(__) ONE MAIN 
BUILDING PER 
LOT 

(a) No more than one main building shall be constructed on a lot except for the 
following: 
(i) Permitted buildings within an agricultural, commercial, institutional, or 

industrial zone. 
 

None required 

 3(13) (13) LOTS WITH MORE 
THAN ONE USE 
OR ZONE 

(__)  ONE OR MORE PERMITTED USES PER LOT OR ZONE  

10 SEPTIC 
• Removal as septic 

is now under 
Building Code  

3(22)(b)  General 
Provisions 

(xvii) RESTRICTED USES 
Any use unable to obtain the approval of private water or sanitary treatment and disposal facilities 
from the Medical Officer or Health of the Wellington Dufferin Guelph Health Unit, owing either to the 
quantity of water required therefor which cannot be provided by a public water system, or to the 
quality of effluent produced thereby; 

None required 

  



 

 
Table of Proposed Changes  4 
Township of Puslinch Housekeeping Amendment 
June 2016 Version    

Original Text additions  shown in red underlined text 
Original text removals  shown in black strikeout text 
New text revisions post-public meeting shown 

in black bold text 
 

 

Preamble 

# DESCRIPTION By-law Reference Proposed Amendment to By-law Recommended Response  
11 PREAMBLE TO 

PERMITTED USES 
• for clarification 

5 A Zone (2) USES PERMITTED 
No person shall, within any A Zone, use any lot or erect, alter or use any building or structure  for any 
purpose except one or more of the following A uses, namely: 
No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within an Agricultural (A) Zone, 
except in accordance with the following provisions: 

None required 

  6 HR Zone (2) USES PERMITTED 
No person shall, within any HR Zone, use any lot or erect, alter or use any building or structure  for any 
purpose except one or more of the following HR uses, namely: 
No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within a Hamlet Residential 
(HR) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions: 

None required 

  7 RR Zone (2) USES PERMITTED 
No person shall, within any RR Zone, use any lot or erect, alter or use any building or structure  for any 
purpose except one or more of the following RR uses, namely: 
No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within a Resort Residential (RR) 
Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions: 

None required 

  7A MR Zone (2) USES PERMITTED 
No person shall, within any RR Zone, use any lot or erect, alter or use any building or structure  for any 
purpose except one or more of the following RR uses, namely: 
No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within a Millcreek Residential 
Area (MR) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions: 

None required 

  7B ML Zone (2) USES PERMITTED 
No person shall, within any RR Zone, use any lot or erect, alter or use any building or structure  for any 
purpose except one or more of the following RR uses, namely: 
No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within a Mini Lakes (ML) Zone, 
except in accordance with the following provisions: 

None required 

  8 ER1 Zone (2) USES PERMITTED 
No person shall, within any ER1 Zone, use any lot or erect, alter or use any building or structure  for any 
purpose except one or more of the following ER1 uses, namely: 
No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within an Estate Residential 
Type 1 (ER1) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions: 

None required 



 

 
Table of Proposed Changes  5 
Township of Puslinch Housekeeping Amendment 
June 2016 Version    

Original Text additions  shown in red underlined text 
Original text removals  shown in black strikeout text 
New text revisions post-public meeting shown 

in black bold text 
 

 

Preamble 

# DESCRIPTION By-law Reference Proposed Amendment to By-law Recommended Response  
11 PREAMBLE TO 

PERMITTED USES 
• for clarification 

9 ER2 Zone (2) USES PERMITTED 
No person shall, within any ER2 Zone, use any lot or erect, alter or use any building or structure  for any 
purpose except one or more of the following ER2 uses, namely: 
No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within an Estate Residential 
Type 2 (ER2) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions: 

None required 

  10 RUR Zone (2) USES PERMITTED 
No person shall, within any RUR Zone, use any lot or erect, alter or use any building or structure  for any 
purpose except one or more of the following RUR uses, namely: 
No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within a Rural Residential (RUR) 
Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions: 

None required 

  11 C1 Zone (2) USES PERMITTED 
No person shall, within any C1 Zone, use any lot or erect, alter or use any building or structure  for any 
purpose except one or more of the following C1 uses, namely: 
No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within a Hamlet Commercial 
(C1) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions: 

None required 

  12 C2 Zone (2) USES PERMITTED 
No person shall, within any C2 Zone, use any lot or erect, alter or use any building or structure  for any 
purpose except one or more of the following C2 uses, namely: 
No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within a Highway Commercial 
(C2) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions: 

None required 

  13 C3 Zone (2) USES PERMITTED 
No person shall, within any C3 Zone, use any lot or erect, alter or use any building or structure  for any 
purpose except one or more of the following C3 uses, namely: 
No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within a Commercial (C3) Zone, 
except in accordance with the following provisions: 

None required 

  14 C4 Zone (2) USES PERMITTED 
No person shall, within any C4 Zone, use any lot or erect, alter or use any building or structure  for any 
purpose except one or more of the following C4 uses, namely: 
No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within a Resort Commercial 
(C4) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions: 

None required 



 

 
Table of Proposed Changes  6 
Township of Puslinch Housekeeping Amendment 
June 2016 Version    

Original Text additions  shown in red underlined text 
Original text removals  shown in black strikeout text 
New text revisions post-public meeting shown 

in black bold text 
 

 

Preamble 

# DESCRIPTION By-law Reference Proposed Amendment to By-law Recommended Response  
11 PREAMBLE TO 

PERMITTED USES 
• for clarification 

15 IND Zone (2) USES PERMITTED 
No person shall, within any IND Zone, use any lot or erect, alter or use any building or structure  for any 
purpose except one or more of the following IND uses, namely: 
No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within an Industrial (IND) Zone, 
except in accordance with the following provisions: 

None required 

  16 EXI Zone (2) USES PERMITTED 
No person shall, within any EXI Zone, use any lot or erect, alter or use any building or structure  for any 
purpose except one or more of the following EXI uses, namely: 
No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within an Extractive (EXI) Zone, 
except in accordance with the following provisions: 

None required 

  17 DI Zone (2) USES PERMITTED 
No person shall, within any DI Zone, use any lot or erect, alter or use any building or structure  for any 
purpose except one or more of the following DI uses, namely: 
No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within a Disposal Industrial (DI) 
Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions: 

None required 

  18 I Zone (2) USES PERMITTED 
No person shall, within any I Zone, use any lot or erect, alter or use any building or structure  for any 
purpose except one or more of the following I uses, namely: 
No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within an Institutional (I) Zone, 
except in accordance with the following provisions: 

None required 

  19 OS Zone (2) USES PERMITTED 
No person shall, within any OS Zone, use any lot or erect, alter or use any building or structure  for any 
purpose except one or more of the following OS uses, namely: 
No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within an Open Space (OS) 
Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions: 

None required 

  20 NE Zone (2) USES PERMITTED 
No person shall, within any NE Zone, use any lot or erect, alter or use any building or structure  for any 
purpose except one or more of the following NE uses, namely: 
No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within a Natural Environment 
(NE) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions: 

None required 



 

 
Table of Proposed Changes  7 
Township of Puslinch Housekeeping Amendment 
June 2016 Version    

Original Text additions  shown in red underlined text 
Original text removals  shown in black strikeout text 
New text revisions post-public meeting shown 

in black bold text 
 

 

Other Provisions 

# DESCRIPTION By-law Reference Proposed Amendment to By-law Recommended Response 
12 FRONT YARD IN 

RESORT 
RESIDENTIAL ZONE 
• Front yard depth 

regulation needed 
 

7(3) Zone 
Requirements 

(c) FRONT YARD DEPTH (MINIMUM)                           7.5 m  None required 

13 MINI LAKES 
• Add date of 

passing of By-law 
9/13 

 

7B(5)(c) Site Front 
Yard (Minimum) 

Fourth sentence of paragraph: 
Notwithstanding the above, this By-law recognizes those accessory buildings or structures which existed prior 
to the date of passing of this By-law December 19, 2012 that are within the front yard or have a front yard 
less than 2.0 metres. 

None required 

  7B(5)(d) Site Side 
Yard (Minimum) 

Third sentence of paragraph: 
Notwithstanding the above, this By-law recognizes those accessory buildings or structures which existed prior 
to the date of passing of this By-law  December 19, 2012 that have a side yard less than 0.6 metres. 

None required 

  7B(5)(e) Site Rear 
Yard (Minimum)  

Third sentence of paragraph: 
Notwithstanding the above, this By-law recognizes those accessory buildings or structures which existed prior 
to the date of passing of this By-law  December 19, 2012 that have a rear yard less than 0.6 metres. 

None required 

 • for clarification of 
lot coverage 
 

7B(5)(h) Site 
Coverage 
(Maximum) 

The coverage of a site by all buildings and structures, including accessory buildings or structures, shall not 
exceed 35%, with the exception of open-sided carports and uncovered decks not exceeding 0.6 m in height. 
Notwithstanding the above, this By-law recognizes those buildings or structures including accessory buildings 
or structures, which existed prior to the date of passing of this By-law that have a coverage which exceeds 
35%. 
 

None required 

  Notwithstanding any other provision of this By-law to the contrary, the coverage of all buildings or structures, 
including accessory buildings or structures, within each site or lot area shall not exceed 35%. Open sided 
carports and uncovered decks not exceeding 0.6 m in height are exempt from the site coverage maximum. 
Notwithstanding the above, this By-law recognizes those buildings or structures including accessory buildings 
or structures, which existed prior to December 19, 2012 that have a coverage which exceeds 35%. 

 

 



 

 
Table of Proposed Changes  8 
Township of Puslinch Housekeeping Amendment 
June 2016 Version    

Original Text additions  shown in red underlined text 
Original text removals  shown in black strikeout text 
New text revisions post-public meeting shown 

in black bold text 
 

 

Other Provisions 

# DESCRIPTION By-law Reference Proposed Amendment to By-law Recommended Response  
following Public Meeting 

13 MINI LAKES 
• increase in 

recreation 
building from 500 
square metres to 
1,100 square 
metres 

7B(6)(e) Building 
Floor Area 
(Maximum) 

laundromat                     100 square metres None required 
 variety store                    150 square metres 
 recreation building         500 square metres  1,100 square metres 

 

 • for clarification of 
site width relative 
to new lot 
frontage 
definition and 
front lot line 

7B(5)(b) Site Width 
(Minimum) 

Each site shall have a minimum width of 9.0 metres measured at the required minimum front yard. 
Notwithstanding the “Lot Frontage” definition of Section 2 of this By-law, “Site Width” means the 
horizontal distance between the side site lines measured along the site front line, but where the front site 
line is not a straight line or where the side site lines are not parallel, the site width is to be measured at 
the required minimum site front yard setback from and parallel to the chord of the site width, and for the 
purpose of this definition the chord of the site width is a straight line joining two points where the side 
site line intersections the site width. 
 

• Additional provisions recommended 
to address concerns of Mini Lakes 
regarding determination of site 
width  

 • for clarification 7B(6)(f)  Front Lot Line 
“Front Lot Line” does not apply to “Site Width” which may be measured at either street line in the case of 
a corner lot. 

 

 
 
  



 

 
Table of Proposed Changes  9 
Township of Puslinch Housekeeping Amendment 
June 2016 Version    

Original Text additions  shown in red underlined text 
Original text removals  shown in black strikeout text 
New text revisions post-public meeting shown 

in black bold text 
 

Minimum Distance Separation 

# DESCRIPTION By-law Reference Proposed Amendment to By-law Recommended Response  
14 MINIMUM DISTANCE 

SEPARATION 
• Provincial Policy 

requires inclusion 
of MDS in zoning 
by-laws 

• Additional 
definitions have 
been added to 
support MDS 
implementation 

• Definitions are 
consistent with 
MDS Guidelines 

 

3(_)  General 
Provisions 

MINIMUM DISTANCE SEPARATION – MDS I AND II None required 

  (a) MDS I – NEW NON-FARM USES 
Notwithstanding any other yard or setback provisions of this By-law to the contrary, no residential, 
institutional, commercial, industrial or recreational use, located on a separate lot and permitted within 
the Agricultural (A) Zone or any other zone in which agricultural uses are permitted, shall be erected or 
altered unless it complies with the Minimum Distance Separation I (MDS I) setback from a livestock 
facility, calculated using the Formulas published by the Province of Ontario, as may be amended from 
time to time. The above provisions shall not apply to lots existing as of the date of passing of this By-law, 
which are less than 4 hectares in area.  

 

   
(b) 

 
MDS II – NEW OR EXPANDING LIVESTOCK FACILITIES AND MANURE STORAGE FACILITIES 
Notwithstanding any other yard or setback provisions of this By-law to the contrary, no livestock facility 
or manure storage facility shall be erected or expanded unless it complies with the Minimum Distance 
Separation II (MDS II) setback, calculated using the Formulas published by the Province of Ontario, as 
may be amended from time to time. Notwithstanding the above, an existing manure storage system 
which does not meet MDS II requirements, may be replaced by a more compatible system which results 
in a reduction in the separation distance required, provided the livestock housing capacity is not 
increased.  

 

 

 
  



 

 
Table of Proposed Changes  10 
Township of Puslinch Housekeeping Amendment 
June 2016 Version    

Original Text additions  shown in red underlined text 
Original text removals  shown in black strikeout text 
New text revisions post-public meeting shown 

in black bold text 
 

 
Minimum Distance Separation 

# DESCRIPTION By-law Reference Proposed Amendment to By-law Recommended Response 
14 MINIMUM 

DISTANCE 
SEPARATION 

2(_) Definitions  “LIVESTOCK”, 
means farm animals kept for use, propagation, or for intended profit or gain and without limiting the 
generality of the foregoing includes:  dairy, beef and veal cattle, horses, swine, sheep, goats, mink rabbits 
and fowl. 
 

None required 

  2(_) Definitions  “LIVESTOCK BARNS”, 
means one or more permanent structures located on a lot which are intended for keeping or housing 
livestock, and are structurally sound and reasonably capable of housing livestock. 
 

None required 

  2(_) Definitions  “LIVESTOCK FACILITIES”,  
include all livestock barns and manure storages, as well as all unoccupied barns and unused manure 
storages on a lot. 

None required 

   
2(_) Definitions 

  
“MANURE STORAGE”, 
means a permanent storage which is structurally sound and reasonably capable of storing manure and 
which contain liquid manure (less than 18% dry matter) or solid manure (greater than or equal to 18% 
dry matter), and may exist in a variety of: locations, 
materials, coverings, configurations and elevations as identified in the Minimum Distance Separation 
Implementation Guidelines issued by the Province of Ontario. 
 

None required 

  Estate Residential 
8(3) Zone 
Requirements 

(i) SEPARATION DISTANCE FROM ADJACENT BARNS 
No single detached dwelling shall be located closer than 180 metres to the barns of an intensive  
agricultural use on adjacent property. 

None required 

      
  Estate Residential 

9(3) Zone 
Requirements 

(i) SEPARATION DISTANCE FROM ADJACENT BARNS 
No single detached dwelling shall be located closer than 180 metres to the barns of an intensive  
agricultural use on adjacent property. 

None required 

      
  Rural Residential 

10(3) Zone 
Requirements 

(i) SEPARATION DISTANCE FROM ADJACENT BARNS 
No single detached dwelling shall be located closer than 180 metres to the barns of an intensive  
agricultural use on adjacent property. 

None required 



 

 
Table of Proposed Changes  11 
Township of Puslinch Housekeeping Amendment 
June 2016 Version    

Original Text additions  shown in red underlined text 
Original text removals  shown in black strikeout text 
New text revisions post-public meeting shown 

in black bold text 
 

 

Housing and Agricultural Regulations 

# DESCRIPTION By-law Reference Proposed Amendment to By-law Recommended Response  
15 DWELLING SIZE 

• Removal of 
minimum dwelling 
unit size as it is not 
necessary to 
regulate 

3(5)(e) Dwelling 
Unit Area 
(Minimal) 

(i) A dwelling unit consisting of a single dwelling – 90 square metres. 
(ii) Any other dwelling unit – 40 square metres for a bachelor dwelling unit plus an additional 10 square 

metres for each bedroom. 

None required 

16 TEMPORARY 
RESIDENCE DURING 
CONSTRUCTION 
• New provision 

would remove the 
need for minor 
variance approval 
for temporary 
residence during 
construction 

 

3(__)  General 
Provisions 

TEMPORARY RESIDENCE DURING CONSTRUCTION None required 

  (a) Where a new single detached dwelling is being constructed on a vacant lot in an Agricultural (A) Zone, a 
mobile home may be located and used as a temporary residence on the same lot during the 
construction of a new residence for a period of time not to exceed 12 months after the building permit 
for the new dwelling is issued, provided all requirements of the Chief Building Official are satisfied, 
including the provision of adequate sewage disposal and water supply, and the posting of sufficient 
securities to ensure the removal of the temporary dwelling. 
 

 

  (b) Where a new single detached dwelling is being constructed to replace an existing single detached 
dwelling on the same lot in an Agricultural (A) Zone, the existing dwelling may continue to be used as a 
temporary residence during the construction of the new residence for a period of time not to exceed 12 
months after the building permit for the new dwelling is issued, provided all requirements of the Chief 
Building Official are satisfied, including the provision of adequate sewage disposal and water supply, 
and the posting of sufficient securities to ensure the removal of the temporary dwelling. 
 

 

 

  



 

 
Table of Proposed Changes  12 
Township of Puslinch Housekeeping Amendment 
June 2016 Version    

Original Text additions  shown in red underlined text 
Original text removals  shown in black strikeout text 
New text revisions post-public meeting shown 

in black bold text 
 

Housing and Agricultural Regulations 

# DISCUSSION By-law Reference Proposed Amendment to By-law Recommended Response  
17 SECOND UNITS 

• definition 
expanded  
 

2(66)(iv) Definitions (a) “Accessory 
Dwelling Unit” 

Means a dwelling unit accessory to a permitted non-residential use or accessory 
to a permitted single detached dwelling in an Agricultural (A) Zone, Estate 
Residential Type 1 (ER1) Zone or Estate Residential Type 2 (ER2) Zone. 
 

None required 

 • allows dwelling 
units in 
basement or 
cellar 

3(5) Dwelling Units (c) LOCATION WITHIN 
BASEMENT OR 
CELLAR 

(i)   No dwelling unit shall be located in its entirety within a basement. 
(_)  No part of any dwelling unit shall be located within a basement of a non-
residential building. 
(_)  No habitable room shall be located within a cellar unless it has a floor to 
ceiling height of at least 1.95 m. 

 

None required 

 • allows accessory 
apartments in A 
Zone in a single 
detached 
dwelling 

5(2) Permitted Uses 
Agricultural Zone 

An accessory apartment in a single detached dwelling on a lot in accordance with Section 5(3). • Editorial changes  

  5(3)(e)  REDUCED 
LOT REQUIREMENTS 

 Add “an accessory apartment within a single detached dwelling on a lot in accordance with Section 
3(1.1) 5(3)” as a permitted use to Section 5(3)(e)(ii) and 5(3)(e)(v)2.a) 

 

      
 • provides 

regulations for 
accessory 
apartments in 
main dwelling 

5(3) Requirements 
Agricultural Zone 

(g)      ACCESSORY APARTMENTS • Public and Council concerns 
regarding minimum lot area and 
size restriction of apartment 

• Remove minimum lot area and 
allow septic requirements through 
building permit to dictate 

• Apartment size cap removed, 40% 
floor area of main dwelling to 
apply 

 
 

   LOT AREA 
(MAXIMUM) 

0.4 ha 

    FLOOR AREA 
(MAXIMUM) 

45% 40% of the Floor Area of the Principal Dwelling but no more than 100 m2. In 
this context “Floor Area” means the total Floor Area of the Building measured 
from the exterior face of outside walls, or centre line of common walls., including 
Cellars and Basements with a floor to ceiling height of at least 1.95 m. Floor Area 
does not include basements, stairs, landings, cold cellars, garages and carports. 

    SERVICING The accessory apartment must connect to the existing well and septic which 
services the main dwelling 

 

    ACCESSORY 
BUILDINGS 

Accessory apartments are not permitted in, or as, a detached building or structure 
 

• Edit addresses PDAC comments 



 

 
Table of Proposed Changes  13 
Township of Puslinch Housekeeping Amendment 
June 2016 Version    

Original Text additions  shown in red underlined text 
Original text removals  shown in black strikeout text 
New text revisions post-public meeting shown 

in black bold text 
 

 

Housing and Agricultural Regulations 

# DISCUSSION By-law Reference Proposed Amendment to By-law Recommended Response  
17 SECOND UNITS 

• allows accessory 
apartment in ER1 
Zone 

8(2) Permitted 
Uses Estate 
Residential Type 1 
Zone 
 

An accessory apartment in a single detached dwelling on a lot in accordance with Section 8(3). None required 

 • provides 
regulations for 
accessory 
apartment in 
main dwelling  

8(3) Requirements 
Estate Residential 
Type 1 Zone 

(j)      ACCESSORY APARTMENTS • Removal of lot area minimum, 
consistent with Agricultural Zone 
changes 

 
  LOT AREA 

(MINIMUM) 
0.8 ha 

  FLOOR AREA 
(MAXIMUM) 

45% 40% of the total Floor Area of the Principal Dwelling but no more than 100 m2  , 
with a maximum of 55 m2  above grade. In this context “Floor Area” means the 
total Floor Area of the Building measured from the exterior face of outside walls, or 
centre line of common walls., including Cellars and Basements with a floor to 
ceiling height of at least 1.95 m. Floor Area does not include basements, stairs, 
landings, cold cellars, garages and carports. 

• Council concerns regarding size 
restriction of apartment above 
grade 

• Apartment size caps removed, 40% 
floor area of main dwelling to 
apply 

    SERVICING The accessory apartment must connect to the existing well and septic which 
services the main dwelling 

 

    ACCESSORY 
BUILDINGS 

Accessory apartments are not permitted in, or as, a detached building or structure 
 

• Edit addresses PDAC comments 

 • allows accessory 
apartment in ER2 
Zone 

9(2) Permitted 
Uses Estate 
Residential Type 2 
Zone 

An accessory apartment in a single detached dwelling on a lot in accordance with Section 9(3). None required 

 • provides 
regulations for 
accessory 
apartment in 
main dwelling 

9(3) Requirements 
Estate Residential 
Type 2 Zone 

(j)      ACCESSORY APARTMENTS • Removal of lot area minimum, 
consistent with Agricultural Zone 
changes   LOT AREA 

(MINIMUM) 
0.4 ha 
 

 



 

 
Table of Proposed Changes  14 
Township of Puslinch Housekeeping Amendment 
June 2016 Version    

Original Text additions  shown in red underlined text 
Original text removals  shown in black strikeout text 
New text revisions post-public meeting shown 

in black bold text 
 

 

Housing and Agricultural Regulations 

# DISCUSSION By-law Reference Proposed Amendment to By-law Recommended Response  
17 SECOND UNITS 9(3) Requirements 

Estate Residential 
Type 2 Zone 

 FLOOR AREA 
(MAXIMUM) 

45% 40% of the total Floor Area of the Principal Dwelling but no more than 100 m2  , 
with a maximum of 55 m2  above grade. In this context “Floor Area” means the 
total Floor Area of the Building measured from the exterior face of outside walls, or 
centre line of common walls, including Cellars and Basements with a floor to 
ceiling height of at least 1.95 m. Floor Area does not include basements, stairs, 
landings, cold cellars, garages and carports. 

• Addresses Council concerns 
regarding size restriction of 
apartment above grade 

• Apartment size caps removed, 40% 
floor area of main dwelling to 
apply 

    SERVICING The accessory apartment must connect to the existing well and septic which 
services the main dwelling 

 

    ACCESSORY 
BUILDINGS 

Accessory apartments are not permitted in, or as, a detached building or structure 
 

• Edit addresses PDAC comments 

18 FARM HELP 
DWELLINGS 
• new provisions 

would allow for a 
secondary 
dwelling 
accessory to a 
farm as-of-right if 
the farm is at 
least 35 ha in size 

5(2) Permitted 
Uses Agricultural 
Zone 

(   )      SECONDARY DWELLING ACCESSORY TO A FARM  

 5(3) New 
subsection 

(   ) REGULATIONS FOR ESTABLISHMENT OF A SECONDARY DWELLING ACCESSORY TO A FARM  

   LOT AREA 
(MINIMUM) 

35.0 ha  

   LOCATION 
A second residential dwelling shall be located within the Farm Building Cluster. The second residential 
dwelling unit must be detached from the main residential dwelling, shall share a common driveway with 
the main farm residence, and shall be located within a 61.0 m radius of the main farm residence.  A 
second residential dwelling shall be provided with a potable water supply and adequate private sewage 
treatment facility. 

 

   TYPE OF 
RESIDENTIAL 
DWELLING 

A second residential dwelling unit  may shall be traditionally constructed, 
prefabricated, modular or a mobile home. 

• Addresses PDAC comments 
 

  2(73.1) Definitions  FARM 
Means a parcel of land, which the predominant activity is agricultural and includes associated buildings 
and structures such as residential dwellings, livestock facilities, farm implement buildings, silos, granaries 
and similar buildings and structures. 

 



 

 
Table of Proposed Changes  15 
Township of Puslinch Housekeeping Amendment 
June 2016 Version    

Original Text additions  shown in red underlined text 
Original text removals  shown in black strikeout text 
New text revisions post-public meeting shown 

in black bold text 
 

 

Housing and Agricultural Regulations 

# DISCUSSION By-law Reference Proposed Amendment to By-law Recommended Response  
18 FARM HELP 

DWELLINGS 
• addition and 

removal of 
definitions to 
support new 
regulations 

2(73.2) Definitions  FARM BUILDING 
CLUSTER 

Means the close grouping of the main buildings and structures on a farm contained 
within a limited area so that the remaining land is used for agriculture. Buildings 
and structures within the cluster shall share a common driveway. 

None required 

 2(65) Definitions (f) “Agricultural 
Service Dwelling” 

Means a temporary dwelling to provide sleeping accommodation and sanitary 
facilities for seasonal farm workers and such temporary dwelling may include 
facilities for cooking. 

 

 2(65) Definitions (f) “Secondary 
Dwelling Accessory 
to a Farm” 

Means a dwelling to provide for farm help.  

 

Bed and Breakfast Establishments 

# DISCUSSION By-law Reference Proposed Amendment to By-law Recommended Response  
19 BED & BREAKFAST 

ESTABLISHMENT 
• Use is currently 

not permitted in 
any zone 

• Would be 
permitted in the A 
Zone  

 

5(2) Permitted 
Uses Agricultural 
Zone 
 

An accessory bed and breakfast establishment in accordance with Section 3.(1.1). None required 

  2(23) Definitions (23) “BED AND 
BREAKFAST 
ESTABLISHMENT 
(B&B)” 

means a single detached residential dwelling in which the proprietor resides 
and supplies up to five furnished rooms and may serve breakfast on a 
temporary basis to overnight guests for monetary gain. It does not include a 
restaurant, hotel, motel, and  boarding  or rooming house or any other form of 
residential dwelling as defined by this By-law.  
 

None required 

 



 

 
Table of Proposed Changes  16 
Township of Puslinch Housekeeping Amendment 
June 2016 Version    

Original Text additions  shown in red underlined text 
Original text removals  shown in black strikeout text 
New text revisions post-public meeting shown 

in black bold text 
 

 

Bed and Breakfast Establishments 

# DISCUSSION By-law Reference Proposed Amendment to By-law Recommended Response  
19 BED & BREAKFAST 

ESTABLISHMENT 
• General provisions 

added to regulate 
number of rooms 
and other 
requirements 

3(1.1)  General 
Provisions 

ACCESSORY BED AND BREAKFAST ESTABLISHMENT (B&B) None required 

  Within the Agricultural (A) Zone, where bed and breakfast establishments are permitted, such uses shall be in 
accordance with the provisions for such zones and shall also comply with the following regulations:  

 

  (a) No more than 5 guest rooms shall be provided in a B&B;  
  (b) Any exterior stairways required for a B&B shall be located in a side or rear yard; and  
  (c) All new B&B establishments shall comply with the requirements of this Zoning By-law, other local by-

laws, and any applicable provincial regulations such as the Ontario Building Code and Fire Code, as 
amended. 

 

 • Addition of B&B to 
list of uses not 
considered home 
occupations 

3(9) Home 
Occupations 

(g) None of the 
following uses shall 
be considered home 
occupations except 
where such uses are 
specifically 
permitted herein 

(xi)       Bed and Breakfast Establishment None required 

 • Parking 
requirements 
added 

3(16) General 
Provisions 

(b) PARKING SPACE REQUIREMENTS FOR RESIDENTIAL USES (MINIMA) None required 

    (iii) Bed and Breakfast 
Establishments 

1 parking space for each room or suite used for the purposes of lodging 
for the travelling public, in addition to the required parking for the 
dwelling unit 

 

 
  



 

 
Table of Proposed Changes  17 
Township of Puslinch Housekeeping Amendment 
June 2016 Version    

Original Text additions  shown in red underlined text 
Original text removals  shown in black strikeout text 
New text revisions post-public meeting shown 

in black bold text 
 

 

Map Change 

# DISCUSSION By-law Reference Proposed Amendment to By-law Recommended Response  
20 MAP CHANGE 

 
Schedule ‘A’ A map change to remove kennel zoning (A-2) from the severed lands of B47/15 (Watson) located at Part Lot 10, 

Concession 4. 
 

None required 

 

Natural Environment Zone Setback 

# DISCUSSION By-law Reference Proposed Amendment to By-law Recommended Response  
21 NATURAL 

ENVIRONMENT 
ZONE SETBACK 
• General provision 

to allow the 
required setback 
from the zone to 
be reduced with 
Conservation 
Authority approval 

3(25)(c)  General 
Provisions 

Notwithstanding the above, the setback from the Natural Environment (NE) Zone may be reduced to a 
distance that is supported by the Conservation Authority having jurisdiction pursuant to its authority provided 
under the Conservation Authorities Act, R.S.O. 1990. Where the Conservation Authority provides written 
approval for a reduced setback from the NE Zone an amendment to this By-law shall not be required. 

Addresses PDAC comments 

    

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TOWNSHIP-WIDE ZONING BY-LAW AMENDMENT 

 
 

for 
 
 

Township of Puslinch 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Housekeeping Amendment 
 
 
 

Prepared by the 
County of Wellington Planning Department 

 
 

June 3, 2016 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 

 
 
 

BY-LAW NUMBER ____________              
 
 

A BY-LAW TO AMEND BY-LAW NUMBER 19/85, AS AMENDED, 
BEING THE ZONING BY-LAW OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 

 
 
  WHEREAS, the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Puslinch deems it 
appropriate and in the public interest to amend By-Law Number 19/85 pursuant to Section 34 of 
the Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990 as amended; 
 
  NOW THEREFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE CORPORATION OF THE 
TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
  
1. That Schedule ‘A’ to By-law 19/85 is hereby amended by rezoning Part Lot 10, 

Concession 4 from Agricultural Exception (A-2) Zone to AGRICULTURAL (A) ZONE, as 
shown on Schedule “A” of this By-law 

 
2. That subsection 2(23)  “BED AND BREAKFAST ESTABLISHMENT” definition is 

deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 
 

“BED AND BREAKFAST ESTABLISHMENT (B&B), means a single detached 
residential dwelling in which the proprietor resides and supplies up to five furnished 
rooms and may serve breakfast on a temporary basis to overnight guests for monetary 
gain. It does not include a restaurant, hotel, motel, and boarding or rooming house or 
any other form of residential dwelling as defined by this By-law.”  
 

3. That subsection 2(65)(f) “Agricultural Service Dwelling” definition is deleted in its 
entirety and replaced with the following: 

 
“(f)  “Secondary Dwelling Accessory to a Farm” means a dwelling to provide for 

farm help.” 
 

4. That subsection 2(66)(iv) “DWELLING UNIT” definition is amended as follows: 
 

“(a) “Accessory Dwelling Unit” means a dwelling unit accessory to a permitted 
non-residential use or accessory to a permitted single detached dwelling in an 
Agricultural (A) Zone, Estate Residential Type 1 (ER1) Zone or Estate 
Residential Type 2 (ER2) Zone.” 

 
5. That SECTION 2 – Definitions is amended by adding the following definitions: 

 



“2(34.1) “BUILDING OR CONTRACTOR’S YARD” means the use of land, buildings 
and structures by a general contractor, excavation contractor, landscaping 
contractor, building contractor, well drilling contractor or similar where 
vehicles, equipment and supplies are parked, stored and maintained for use 
in the construction and/or renovation trades. It does not include retail or 
wholesale sales, a temporary job construction site or any other use as 
defined by this by-law.  Office use, as well as minor maintenance and 
assembly work normally considered to be accessory to the trade are 
permitted. 

 
2(73.1) “FARM” means a parcel of land, which the predominant activity is 

agricultural and includes associated buildings and structures such as 
residential dwellings, livestock facilities, farm implement buildings, silos, 
granaries and similar buildings and structures. 

 
2(73.2) “FARM BUILDING CLUSTER” means the close grouping of the main 

buildings and structures on a farm contained within a limited area so that the 
remaining land is used for agriculture. Buildings and structures within the 
cluster shall share a common driveway.”  

 
2(114.1) “LIVESTOCK” means farm animals kept for use, propagation, or for intended 

profit or gain and without limiting the generality of the foregoing includes:  
dairy, beef and veal cattle, horses, swine, sheep, goats, mink rabbits and 
fowl. 

 
2(114.2) “LIVESTOCK BARNS” means one or more permanent structures located on 

a lot which are intended for keeping or housing livestock, and are structurally 
sound and reasonably capable of housing livestock. 

 
2(114.3) “LIVESTOCK FACILITIES” include all livestock barns and manure storages, 

as well as all unoccupied barns and unused manure storages on a lot. 
 
2(122.1) “MANURE STORAGE” means a permanent storage which is structurally 

sound and reasonably capable of storing manure and which contain liquid 
manure (less than 18% dry matter) or solid manure (greater than or equal to 
18% dry matter), and may exist in a variety of: locations, materials, coverings, 
configurations and elevations as identified in the Minimum Distance 
Separation Implementation Guidelines issued by the Province of Ontario.” 

 
6. That subsection 2(120) “LOT FRONTAGE” definition is amended by deleting it in its 

entirety and replacing it with the following: 
 

“LOT FRONTAGE” means the horizontal distance between the side lot lines measured 
along the front lot line, but where the front lot line is not a straight line or where the side 
lot lines are not parallel, the lot frontage is to be measured by a line 6.0 m back from and 
parallel to the chord of the lot frontage, and for the purpose of this paragraph the chord 
of the lot frontage is a straight line joining the two points where the side lot lines intersect 
the front lot line.” 

 
7. That subsection 2(121)(a) “Front Lot Line” definition is amended by deleting (i) and (ii) 

in their entirety and replacing them with the following: 
 



“(i)  in the case of an interior lot, the line dividing the lot from the street; 
 

(ii)  in the case of a corner lot, the shorter lot line abutting a street; or” 
 

8. That subsection 2(182) “STRUCTURE” definition is amended to add the following text 
to the end of the sentence: 

 
“or sewage systems.” 

 
9. That SECTION 3 General Provisions is amended by adding the following: 

 
“(1.1)   ACCESSORY BED AND BREAKFAST ESTABLISHMENT (B&B) 
 

Within the Agricultural (A) Zone, where bed and breakfast establishments are 
permitted, such uses shall be in accordance with the provisions for such zones 
and shall also comply with the following regulations: 
 
(a) No more than 5 guest rooms shall be provided in a B&B; 
 
(b) Any exterior stairways required for a B&B shall be located in a side or 

rear yard; and 
 
(c) All new B&B establishments shall comply with the requirements of this 

Zoning By-law, other local by-laws, and any applicable provincial 
regulations such as the Ontario Building Code and Fire Code, as 
amended.” 

 
10. That subsection 3(5)(c) LOCATION WITHIN BASEMENT OR CELLAR is amended by 

deleting it in its entirety and replacing it with the following: 
 
“(i)   No part of any dwelling unit shall be located within a basement of a non-

residential building. 
(ii)   No habitable room shall be located within a cellar unless it has a floor to ceiling 

height of at least 1.95 m.” 
 

11. That subsection 3(5)(e) DWELLING UNIT AREA (MINIMAL) is deleted in its entirety 
and subsequent sections renumbered accordingly. 
 

12. That subsection 3(7) GROUP HOMES is amended by deleting it in its entirety and 
replacing it with the following: 
 
“Notwithstanding any other provisions of this By-law to the contrary, a Group Home may 
be permitted in any single dwelling unit provided the dwelling unit has 20 square metres 
per person residing within the unit. Group Homes must be registered with the 
municipality as per the Municipal Act.” 
 

13. That subsection 3(9) HOME OCCUPATIONS is amended by deleting (f) and replacing it 
with the following: 

 
“(f) No home occupation shall create or become a public nuisance, particularly with 

regard to noise, traffic, emissions, parking or radio or television interference.” 
 

and by adding the following: 
 



“(g) (x) a contractor’s yard 
 (xi) a bed and breakfast establishment 

 
(h) Any open storage permitted in conjunction with a home occupation shall comply 

with the provisions of Section 3(15).” 
 

14. That subsection 3(13) LOTS WITH MORE THAN ONE USE OR ZONE be renumbered 
and renamed: 

 
“3(14.1) ONE OR MORE PERMITTED USES PER LOT OR ZONE” 

 
and the following new section is added:  

 
“3(14.1) ONE MAIN BUILDING PER LOT 

 
(a) No more than one main building shall be constructed on a lot 

except for the following: 
 

(i) Permitted buildings within an agricultural, commercial, 
institutional, or industrial zone.” 

 
15. That subsection 3(13) be replaced with the following: 

 
“MINIMUM DISTANCE SEPARATION – MDS I AND II 

 
(a) MDS I – NEW NON-FARM USES 

 
Notwithstanding any other yard or setback provisions of this By-law to the 
contrary, no residential, institutional, commercial, industrial or recreational use, 
located on a separate lot and permitted within the Agricultural (A) Zone or any 
other zone in which agricultural uses are permitted, shall be erected or altered 
unless it complies with the Minimum Distance Separation I (MDS I) setback from 
a livestock facility, calculated using the Formulas published by the Province of 
Ontario, as may be amended from time to time. The above provisions shall not 
apply to lots existing as of the date of passing of this By-law, which are less than 
4 hectares in area. 

 
(b) MDS II – NEW OR EXPANDING LIVESTOCK FACILITIES AND MANURE 

STORAGE FACILITIES 
 

Notwithstanding any other yard or setback provisions of this By-law to the 
contrary, no livestock facility or manure storage facility shall be erected or 
expanded unless it complies with the Minimum Distance Separation II (MDS II) 
setback, calculated using the Formulas published by the Province of Ontario, as 
may be amended from time to time. Notwithstanding the above, an existing 
manure storage system which does not meet MDS II requirements, may be 
replaced by a more compatible system which results in a reduction in the 
separation distance required, provided the livestock housing capacity is not 
increased.” 

 
16. That subsection 3(15)(a) OPEN STORAGE REGULATIONS is amended by increasing 

the minimum height of a wall or other opaque barrier to 2.0 metres in paragraph (iv). 
 



17. That subsection 3(16)(b) PARKING SPACE REQUIREMENTS FOR RESIDENTAL 
USES (MINIMA) is amended by addition of the following: 
 

“(iii) Bed and Breakfast Establishments - 1 parking space for each room or 
suite used for the purposes of 
lodging for the travelling public, in 
addition to the required parking for 
the dwelling unit” 

 
18. That subsection 3(22)(b) RESTRICTED USES is amended by deleting (xvii) it in its 

entirety. 
 

19. That subsection 3(23)(a) PROJECTION INTO REQUIRED YARDS is amended to add 
the following:  

 
“(vii) Underground service structures such as sewage systems and firefighting tank 

reservoirs which do not project more than 2.0 metres into a required interior side 
yard or rear yard, and which do not project more than 3.0 m into a required front 
yard or exterior side yard.” 

 
20. That subsection 3(25) SETBACKS FROM THE NATURAL ENVIRONMENT ZONE is 

amended to add the following sentence to the end of subsection (c):  
 

“Where the Conservation Authority provides written approval for a reduced 
setback from the NE Zone an amendment to this By-law shall not be required.” 

 
21. That SECTION 3 – General Provisions is amended by adding the following: 

 
“3(27) TEMPORARY RESIDENCE DURING CONSTRUCTION 
 

(a) Where a new single detached dwelling is being constructed on a vacant 
lot in an Agricultural (A) Zone, a mobile home may be located and used 
as a temporary residence on the same lot during the construction of a 
new residence for a period of time not to exceed 12 months after the 
building permit for the new dwelling is issued, provided all requirements of 
the Chief Building Official are satisfied, including the provision of 
adequate sewage disposal and water supply, and the posting of sufficient 
securities to ensure the removal of the temporary dwelling. 

 
(b) Where a new single detached dwelling is being constructed to replace an 

existing single detached dwelling on the same lot in an Agricultural (A) 
Zone, the existing dwelling may continue to be used as a temporary 
residence during the construction of the new residence for a period of 
time not to exceed 12 months after the building permit for the new 
dwelling is issued, provided all requirements of the Chief Building Official 
are satisfied, including the provision of adequate sewage disposal and 
water supply, and the posting of sufficient securities to ensure the 
removal of the temporary dwelling.” 

 
22. That subsection 5(2) A Zone USES PERMITTED preamble is amended by deleting it in 

its entirety and replacing it with the following: 
 

“No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within an 
Agricultural (A) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions:” 



 
23. That subsection 5(2) A Zone USES PERMITTED is amended by adding the following 

permitted uses: 
 
“(l) An accessory apartment in a single detached dwelling on a lot in accordance with 

Section 5(3) 
 
(m) An accessory bed and breakfast establishment in accordance with Section 3(1.1) 
 
(n) A secondary dwelling accessory to a farm” 
 

24. That subsection 5(3)(e) REDUCED LOT REQUIREMENTS is amended to add 5(2)(l) as 
a permitted use to subsection 5(3)(e)(ii). 
 

25. That subsection 5(3) A Zone ZONE REQUIREMENTS is amended by adding the 
following: 
 
“(g) ACCESSORY APARTMENTS 

 
(i) FLOOR AREA (MAXIMUM) 40% of the Floor Area of the Principal 

Dwelling. In this context “Floor Area” 
means the total Floor Area of the Building 
measured from the exterior face of 
outside walls, or centre line of common 
walls. Floor Area does not include 
basements, stairs, landings, cold cellars, 
garages and carports. 

   
(ii) SERVICING The accessory apartment must connect to 

the existing well and septic which 
services the main dwelling 

   
(iii) ACCESSORY BUILDINGS Accessory apartments are not permitted 

in, or as, a detached building or structure” 
 
26. That subsection 5(3) A Zone ZONE REQUIREMENTS is amended by adding the 

following: 
 
“(h) REGULATIONS FOR ESTABLISHMENT OF A SECONDARY DWELLING 

ACCESSORY TO A FARM 
 

(i) LOT AREA (MINIMUM) 35.0 ha 
   
(ii) LOCATION A second residential dwelling shall be 

located within the Farm Building Cluster. 
The second residential dwelling unit must 
be detached from the main residential 
dwelling, shall share a common driveway 
with the main farm residence, and shall 
be located within a 61.0 m radius of the 
main farm residence.  A second 
residential dwelling shall be provided with 
a potable water supply and adequate 
private sewage treatment facility. 



   
(iii) TYPE OF RESIDENTIAL 

DWELLING 
A second residential dwelling unit shall be 
prefabricated, modular or a mobile home.” 

 
27. That subsection 6(2) HR Zone USES PERMITTED preamble is amended by deleting it 

in its entirety and replacing it with the following: 
 

“No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within a 
Hamlet Residential (HR) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions:” 
 

28. That subsection 7(2) RR Zone USES PERMITTED preamble is amended by deleting it 
in its entirety and replacing it with the following: 

 
“No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within a 
Resort Residential (RR) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions:” 
 

29. That subsection 7(3)(c) RR Zone FRONT YARD is amended by deleting it in its entirety 
and replacing it with the following: 

 
“(c) FRONT YARD DEPTH (MINIMUM)   7.5 m 
 
Within the RR Zone, the front yard shall be considered a rear yard when the property 
abuts a lake or watercourse.” 

 
30. That subsection 7A(2) MR Zone USES PERMITTED preamble is amended by deleting it 

in its entirety and replacing it with the following: 
 

“No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within a 
Millcreek Residential Area (MR) Zone, except in accordance with the following 
provisions:” 

 
31. That subsection 7B(2) ML Zone USES PERMITTED preamble is amended by deleting it 

in its entirety and replacing it with the following: 
 

“No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within a Mini 
Lakes (ML) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions:” 
 

32. That subsection 7B(5)(b) ML Zone DWELLING SITE REQUIREMENTS is amended by 
adding the following text after the first sentence: 

 
“Notwithstanding the “Lot Frontage” definition of Section 2 of this By-law, “Site Width” 
means the horizontal distance between the side site lines measured along the site front 
line, but where the front site line is not a straight line or where the side site lines are not 
parallel, the site width is to be measured at the required minimum site front yard setback 
from and parallel to the chord of the site width, and for the purpose of this definition the 
chord of the site width is a straight line joining two points where the side site line 
intersections the site width.” 

 
33. That subsection 7B(5)(c) ML Zone DWELLING SITE REQUIREMENTS is amended by 

deleting the second sentence of the paragraph, and by deleting the fourth sentence of 
the paragraph and replacing it with the following: 

 



“(c) Site Front Yard (Minimum) 
Notwithstanding the above, this By-law recognizes those accessory buildings or 
structures which existed prior to December 19, 2012 that are within the front yard 
or have a front yard less than 2.0 metres.”  

 
34. That subsection 7B(5)(d) ML Zone DWELLING SITE REQUIREMENTS is amended by 

deleting the third sentence and replacing it with the following: 
 

“(d) Site Side Yard (Minimum) 
Notwithstanding the above, this By-law recognizes those accessory buildings or 
structures which existed prior to December 19, 2012 that have a side yard less 
than 0.6 metres.”  

 
35. That subsection 7B(5)(e) ML Zone DWELLING SITE REQUIREMENTS is amended by 

deleting the third sentence and replacing it with the following: 
 

“(e) Site Rear Yard (Minimum) 
Notwithstanding the above, this By-law recognizes those accessory buildings or 
structures which existed prior to December 19, 2012 that have a rear yard less 
than 0.6 metres.”  

 
36. That subsection 7B(5)(h) ML Zone DWELLING SITE REQUIREMENTS is amended by 

deleting (h) in its entirety and replacing it with the following: 
 

“(h) Site Coverage (Maximum) 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this By-law to the contrary, the coverage 
of all buildings or structures, including accessory buildings or structures, within 
each site or lot area shall not exceed 35%. Open sided carports and uncovered 
decks not exceeding 0.6 m in height are exempt from the site coverage 
maximum. 
 
Notwithstanding the above, this By-law recognizes those buildings or structures 
including accessory buildings or structures, which existed prior to December 19, 
2012 that have a coverage which exceeds 35%.” 

 
37. That subsection 7B(6)(e) ML Zone GENERAL ZONE REQUIREMENTS is amended by 

changing the Building Floor Area (Maximum) for the recreation building as follows: 
 

“recreation building  1,100 square metres” 
 
38. That subsection 7B(6)(f) ML Zone GENERAL ZONE REQUIREMENTS is added as 

follows and existing subsection (f) is renumbered: 
 

“(f) Front Lot Line 
“Front Lot Line” does not apply to “Site Width” which may be measured at either 
street line in the case of a corner lot. 
 

39. That subsection 8(2) ER1 Zone USES PERMITTED preamble is amended by deleting it 
in its entirety and replacing it with the following: 

 
“No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within an 
Estate Residential Type 1 (ER1) Zone, except in accordance with the following 
provisions:” 

 



40. That subsection 8(2) ER1 Zone USES PERMITTED is amended by adding the following 
permitted use: 
 
“(d) An accessory apartment in a single detached dwelling on a lot in accordance with 

Section 8(3).” 
 

41. That subsection 8(3) ER1 Zone ZONE REQUIREMENTS is amended by deleting the 
following: 
 
(i)  SEPARATION DISTANCE FROM ADJACENT BARNS 

No single detached dwelling shall be located closer than 180 metres to the barns 
of an intensive agricultural use on adjacent property. 

 
42. That subsection 8(3) ER1 Zone ZONE REQUIREMENTS is amended by adding the 

following: 
 
“(i) ACCESSORY APARTMENTS 

 
(i) FLOOR AREA (MAXIMUM) 40% of the Floor Area of the Principal 

Dwelling. In this context “Floor Area” 
means the total Floor Area of the Building 
measured from the exterior face of 
outside walls, or centre line of common 
walls. Floor Area does not include 
basements, stairs, landings, cold cellars, 
garages and carports. 

   
(ii) SERVICING The accessory apartment must connect to 

the existing well and septic which 
services the main dwelling 

   
(iii) ACCESSORY BUILDINGS Accessory apartments are not permitted 

in, or as, a detached building or structure” 
 
43. That subsection 9(2) ER2 Zone USES PERMITTED preamble is amended by deleting it 

in its entirety and replacing it with the following: 
 

“No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within an 
Estate Residential Type 2 (ER2) Zone, except in accordance with the following 
provisions:” 

 
44. That subsection 9(2) ER2 Zone USES PERMITTED is amended by adding the following 

permitted use: 
 
“(d) An accessory apartment in a single detached dwelling on a lot in accordance with 

Section 9(3).” 
 
45. That subsection 9(3) ER2 Zone ZONE REQUIREMENTS is amended by deleting the 

following: 
 

(i) SEPARATION DISTANCE FROM ADJACENT BARNS 
No single detached dwelling shall be located closer than 180 metres to the barns 
of an intensive agricultural use on adjacent property. 

 



46. That subsection 9(3) ER2 Zone ZONE REQUIREMENTS is amended by adding the 
following: 
 
“(i) ACCESSORY APARTMENTS 

 
(i) FLOOR AREA (MAXIMUM) 40% of the Floor Area of the Principal 

Dwelling. In this context “Floor Area” 
means the total Floor Area of the Building 
measured from the exterior face of 
outside walls, or centre line of common 
walls. Floor Area does not include 
basements, stairs, landings, cold cellars, 
garages and carports. 

   
(ii) SERVICING The accessory apartment must connect to 

the existing well and septic which 
services the main dwelling 

   
(iii) ACCESSORY BUILDINGS Accessory apartments are not permitted 

in, or as, a detached building or structure” 
 
47. That subsection 10(2) RUR Zone USES PERMITTED preamble is amended by deleting 

it in its entirety and replacing it with the following: 
 

“No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within a Rural 
Residential (RUR) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions:” 
 

48. That subsection 10(3) RUR Zone ZONE REQUIREMENTS is amended by deleting the 
following: 

 
(i) SEPARATION DISTANCE FROM ADJACENT BARNS 

No single detached dwelling shall be located closer than 180 metres to the barns 
of an intensive agricultural use on adjacent property. 

 
49. That subsection 11(2) C1 Zone USES PERMITTED preamble is amended by deleting it 

in its entirety and replacing it with the following: 
 

“No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within a 
Hamlet Commercial (C1) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions:” 

 
50. That subsection 12(2) C2 Zone USES PERMITTED preamble is amended by deleting it 

in its entirety and replacing it with the following: 
 

“No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within a 
Highway Commercial (C2) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions:” 

 
51. That subsection 13(2) C3 Zone USES PERMITTED preamble is amended by deleting it 

in its entirety and replacing it with the following: 
 

“No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within a 
Commercial (C3) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions:” 

 



52. That subsection 14(2) C4 Zone USES PERMITTED preamble is amended by deleting it 
in its entirety and replacing it with the following: 

 
“No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within a 
Resort Commercial (C4) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions:” 

 
53. That subsection 15(2) IND Zone USES PERMITTED preamble is amended by deleting it 

in its entirety and replacing it with the following: 
 

“No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within an 
Industrial (IND) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions:” 

 
54. That subsection 16(2) EXI Zone USES PERMITTED preamble is amended by deleting it 

in its entirety and replacing it with the following: 
 

“No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within an 
Extractive (EXI) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions:” 

 
55. That subsection 17(2) DI Zone USES PERMITTED preamble is amended by deleting it 

in its entirety and replacing it with the following: 
 

“No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within a 
Disposal Industrial (DI) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions:” 

 
56. That subsection 18(2) I Zone USES PERMITTED preamble is amended by deleting it in 

its entirety and replacing it with the following: 
 
“No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within an 
Institutional (I) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions:” 

 
57. That subsection 19(2) OS Zone USES PERMITTED preamble is amended by deleting it 

in its entirety and replacing it with the following: 
 

“No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within an 
Open Space (OS) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions:” 

 
58. That subsection 20(2) NE Zone USES PERMITTED preamble is amended by deleting it 

in its entirety and replacing it with the following: 
 

“No person shall use land or erect, alter or use any buildings or structures within a 
Natural Environment (NE) Zone, except in accordance with the following provisions:” 

 
59. That the following illustrations be added to the end of SECTION 2  Definitions: 
 
 



ILLUSTRATIONS OF DEFINITIONS AND PROVISIONS 
 
Note: The diagrams and illustrations on the following pages are for the purposes of illustration 
only and do not form part of the zoning by-law. 
 

GUIDE TO LOT FRONTAGES 

the lot frontage is measured along a line 6.0 m 
back from and parallel to the chord of the lot 

frontage 



 ILLUSTRATIONS OF DEFINITIONS AND PROVISIONS 
 
Note: The diagrams and illustrations on the following pages are for the purposes of illustration 
only and do not form part of the zoning by-law. 
 
 

GUIDE TO HEIGHT DEFINITIONS 
 
 

 
 



READ A FIRST AND SECOND TIME THIS           DAY OF       ___                        , 2016. 
 
 
                                                                     ____________________________                                                                                                         
MAYOR      CLERK 
 
 
READ A THIRD TIME AND PASSED THIS          DAY OF                                     , 2016. 
 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                        
MAYOR      CLERK 

 
 
 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
 

BY-LAW NO. ____________                
 

S C H E D U L E   " A "  
 

 

 
 
 
This is Schedule "A" to By-law No. _______                    
Passed this          day of                     , 2016. 

 
 
      __________________________________ 

MAYOR 
 
 
__________________________________                                          
CLERK 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
 

EXPLANATION OF BY-LAW NO. __________ 
 
 
The purpose of By-law Number                is to amend various sections of the Township’s Zoning 
By-law as follows: 
 
 
DEFINITIONS 
 
Improvements 
• Bed and Breakfast Establishments 
• Accessory Dwelling Units 
• Lot Frontage 
• Front Lot Line  
• Structure 
 
Additions  
• Building or Contractor’s Yard 
• Farm  
• Farm Building Cluster 
• Livestock 
• Livestock Barns 
• Livestock Facilities 
• Manure Storage 
 
Removal 
• Agricultural Service Dwelling 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
Improvements  
• Location of Dwelling Unit 
• Group Homes 
• Home Occupations 
• One Main Building per Lot 
• Open Storage 
• Yard Projections 
• NE Zone Setbacks 
 
Additions 
• Bed and Breakfast Establishments 
• MDS I and II 
• Temporary Residence during 

Construction  
 
Removal  
• Dwelling Unit Minimum

 
 
OTHER 
 
• Zone Permitted Use preambles 
• Addition of Second Units in the Agricultural and Estate Residential Zones 
• Rural Residential Zone Front Yard Depth 
• Mini Lakes Zone clarifications and increase of recreation building area to 1,100 square 

metres 
• Removal of Agricultural Exception (A-2) Zone allowing a kennel on a new residential lot 

severed from the property (B47/15) and place the portion of the property in question back 
into Agricultural (A) Zone 

• Addition of Illustrations for assist with definitions and provisions
 



 

 

        COMMITTEE REPORT     
  
  

To:  Chair and Members of the Planning Committee 

From:  Mark Paoli, Manager of Policy Planning 
Date:            June 9, 2016 

Subject:  COMMENTS ON PROPOSED CHANGES TO PROVINCIAL PLANS 

 

1.0 Background: 

The province started a Co-ordinated Land Use Planning Review of the Growth Plan for the Greater 
Golden Horseshoe (the Growth Plan); the Greenbelt Plan; the Oak Ridges Moraine Conservation Plan; 
and the Niagara Escarpment Plan, in 2015.  The Growth Plan and Greenbelt apply within Wellington 
County.  

The first phase of the review was focused on a discussion paper that was released for comment and 
concluded with a report prepared for the province by David Crombie with 87 recommendations.  The 
County provided input to this part of the process through Planning Committee reports that were 
endorsed by Council, forwarded to the province and circulated to local municipalities. 

A new phase of the review is underway as the province has released proposed changes to the Plans 
and is seeking input.  While the deadline for comments is September 30th, County staff are bringing 
forward this report now so that local municipalities have time to use it as a base for their comments if 
they wish to do so.   

2.0      Comments: 

 
Overall Comment  
The province is intruding too far into municipal planning, leaving little room for citizens to have 
meaningful input into the future of their own communities.   
 
Also, the province’s review is an opportunity for the Plans to reduce overlap with the PPS and focus 
more on growth management; instead, the scope of the Plans has broadened to include a number of 
topics that are already adequately addressed in the PPS, so should be added to the PPS.  These include:   
 

 Agriculture; 
 

 Natural heritage;  
 

 Cultural heritage; and  
 

 Climate change. 
 
 
 

10



 

A more detailed summary of comments is set out below: 

Comments on Both Plans 
 

The County of Wellington: 
 

1. Supports Greenbelt policy 
changes that defer to the 
Growth Plan for certain 
growth management and 
infrastructure policies as this 
reduces overlap and 
improves coordination. 
 

2. Views the establishment of 
Agricultural System mapping 
as being redundant given 
that the PPS already directs 
us to designate these lands. 

 
3. Recommends that 

Agricultural Support 
Network policies be added 
to the PPS instead of these 
Plans. 

 
4. Recommends that the 

requirement for an 
agricultural impact 
assessment for mineral 
aggregate applications be 
added to the PPS instead of 
these Plans. 

 

5. Notes that the PPS was 
broadened to include 
climate change policies and 
recommends that, if the 
province feels that the PPS 
climate change policies are 
not sufficient, then it should 
address this through 
changes to the PPS instead 
of these Plans. 

Growth Plan Comments 
 

The County of Wellington: 
 

1. Supports the continued ability of the 
County to establish alternative targets; 
however, we are concerned about the 
upward pressure on targets as the 
main factors on which the targets 
were justified remain, and major 
density increases are not accepted by 
the public in small town Ontario. 
 

2. Notes that some designated greenfield 
is made up of subdivision plans 
historically approved or supported by 
the province at lower densities.  
Making up for these lower densities in 
the remaining area is not realistic so 
the application of the target needs to 
exclude the build out of these plans. 

 
3. Supports the change to the 2041 time 

horizon and a consistent methodology 
to assess land needs; however, we are 
concerned that the 5-Year Review 
requirement for a municipal 
comprehensive review may prevent 
important projects that cannot wait 
for the next 5-Year Review (example: 
to expand to accommodate a school). 

 
4. Does not support the mandatory 

identification of, and prohibition of 
development on, excess lands.  This 
should be optional. 

 
5. Supports the ability to establish ‘prime 

employment areas’; however, 
discussion with our local municipalities 
is required and we are concerned that 
the definition excludes unserviced 
lands outside of settlement areas 
which are some of our best 
employment lands. 

 

6. Does not support the provincial 
imposition of a natural heritage 
system. Current PPS policies should 
govern the development of natural 
heritage systems in official plans.  

Greenbelt Plan Comments 
 

The County of Wellington: 
 

1. Maintains the position 
stated in previous reports 
that the Greenbelt Plan is 
doing its intended job 
reasonably well, and we see 
no rationale for expanding 
beyond its current 
boundary in Wellington 
County.   
 

2. Does not support the 
proposed policy that would 
impose Greenbelt 
expansion on the County. 
Municipal support should 
be a requirement. 

 
3. Supports natural heritage 

policy changes that provide 
less onerous requirements 
for agricultural 
development than in the 
current Greenbelt Plan. 

 

4. Does not support the 
inclusion of buildings for 
agricultural, agriculture-
related and on-farm 
diversified uses in the 
definition of ‘major 
development’.  

11



 

3.0     Changes in Both Plans: 

 
3.1 Agricultural System and Agricultural Support Network 
 
The province proposes to lead the establishment of an Agricultural System across the Greater Golden 
Horseshoe. It would consist of Specialty Crop areas, Prime Agricultural Areas and Rural Lands.  
 

Given that the land base for the system is already designated in official plans, we see this as a 
redundant exercise. 

 
Also added is a new policy for an “Agricultural Support Network”, defined below: 
 

“a network that includes elements Important to the viability of the Agri-food sector such as: 
regional agricultural infrastructure and transportation networks, on-farm buildings and 
infrastructure, agricultural services, farm markets, distributors and first level processing and 
vibrant agricultural-supportive communities. “ 

 
New polices which have been introduced into the Plan include planning for the “Agricultural Support 
Network”. This would require planning decisions to consider the connections, both financial and 
physical of the Agricultural food Sector.  It is unclear at this time what criteria would be applied to a 
land use decision in this regard. 
 

We recommend that Agricultural Support Network policies be added to the PPS instead of 
these Plans. 

 
 
3.2 Agricultural Impact Assessment for new mineral aggregate operations 
 

Both Plans would require an Agricultural Impact Assessment to be completed for new mineral 
aggregate operations in the Prime Agricultural Area, which is not a requirement in the current 
Provincial Policy Statement.   
 

We recommend that the requirement for an agricultural impact assessment for mineral 
aggregate applications be added to the PPS instead of these Plans. 

 
3.3 Climate change 
The scope of both Plans has widened to include climate change. The Growth Plan would require the 
County to “develop policies in the official plan to identify actions that will reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions and address climate change adaptation goals, aligned with the Ontario Climate Change 
Strategy, 2015 and Action Plan.”   
 

We note that the PPS was broadened to include climate change policies and recommend that, 
if the province feels that the PPS climate change policies are not sufficient, then it should 
address this in the PPS instead of these Plans.  

12



 

4.0   Main Growth Plan Changes:  

 
4.1    Targets 
 
Current Targets 
 
The Growth Plan contains two areas that are referred to as the “inner ring” and “outer ring” and 
Wellington County is in the outer ring (see Figure 1 below).   
 
Figure 1:  The Greater Golden Horseshoe and Niagara Escarpment Area 

 
Source: Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing 

 
The current minimum targets that apply to the inner ring municipalities, as well as those municipalities 
in the outer ring that have an urban growth centre such as Waterloo Region and the City of Guelph are: 
 

- Intensification - 40 % of residential development within the built boundary; and  
 

- Greenfield Density - 50 persons and jobs per hectare.   
 
In the outer ring, the Growth Plan provided Counties with the ability to request an alternative target 
that would be appropriate given the size, location and capacity of the built up area, and the 
characteristics of the municipality and adjacent communities.    

13



 

 
In 2009, County Council submitted a request for alternative targets that was based on a staff report 
that set out the planning analysis for the minimum targets for Wellington County: 
 

- Intensification - 20 % of residential development within the built boundary; and  
 

- Greenfield Density - 40 persons and jobs per hectare.  
 
The province approved Council’s request, and the alternative targets were included in the Official Plan 
Amendment to conform with Places to Grow (OPA 65) that was adopted in 2009. 
 
Proposed Changes 
 
The proposed minimum targets that apply to the inner ring municipalities, as well as those 
municipalities in the outer ring that have an urban growth centre such as Waterloo Region and the City 
of Guelph are: 
 

- Intensification - 60 % of residential development within the built boundary; and  
 

- Greenfield Density - 80 persons and jobs per hectare.   
 
The proposed Intensification target is 50% higher than in the current Growth Plan and the proposed 
Greenfield Density target is 60% higher.  Although the effect of the Greenfield Density increase will be 
offset somewhat by the fact that more land can be excluded from the calculation, it is also worth 
noting that these higher targets will need to be met on a smaller land area because the built boundary 
is to remain unchanged.   
 
In the outer ring, Council may request alternative targets at the time of the next 5-Year Review of the 
Official Plan.  At that point, we will be required to revisit the targets and resubmit justifications.  There 
will be pressure to increase the targets based on the significant mandatory increases described above.   
 

We support the continued ability of the County to establish alternative targets; however, we 
are concerned about the upward pressure on targets as the main factors on which the targets 
were justified remain, and major density increases are not accepted by the public in small 
town Ontario. 
 
We note that some designated greenfield area is made up of subdivision plans historically 
approved or supported by the province at lower densities.  Making up for these lower 
densities in the remaining area is not realistic so the application of the target needs to 
exclude the build out of these plans. 

 
 
  

14



 

4.2     Land Needs Assessment 
 
In the current Growth Plan, the assessment of land needs to justify a settlement expansion is: based on 
20 years of growth as set out in the forecasts; carried out as part of a municipal comprehensive review 
that can be done as part of a 5-Year Review, or on an as needed basis; and is calculated using different 
methods.   
 
In the proposed Growth Plan, the assessment of land needs to justify a settlement expansion is: based 
on the horizon of the Plan (2041); carried out as part of a municipal comprehensive review that can 
only be done as part of a 5-Year Review; and calculated using a standardized provincial methodology.   
 
 
A related change is that, as an outer ring upper-tier, we would be required to identify any ‘excess 
lands’, (lands that exceed forecasted needs to 2041).  If we have excess lands, we would be required to 
prohibit development on those lands. Although we would then be in a position to justify settlement 
expansions, notwithstanding the identified “excess”, the prohibition of development on designated 
land is likely to result in objections.   
 

We support the change to the 2041 time horizon and a consistent methodology to assess land 
needs; however, we are concerned that the 5-Year Review requirement for a municipal 
comprehensive review may prevent important projects that cannot wait for the next 5-Year 
Review (example: to expand to accommodate a school). 

 
We do not support the mandatory identification of, and prohibition of development on, 
excess lands.  This should be optional. 

 
4.3    Employment Lands 
 
The proposed Growth Plan would establish a new category of employment lands referred to as “Prime 
Employment Areas” and defined as: 
 

“Areas of employment within settlement areas that are designated in an official plan and 
protected over the long-term for uses that are land-extensive or have low employment 
densities and require these locations, including manufacturing, warehousing and logistics and 
appropriate associated uses and ancillary facilities.” 

 
As an upper-tier municipality, the County may identify existing employment areas in settlement areas 
as prime employment areas, where appropriate.  Implications of this would include: 
 

- A requirement to prohibit residential and other sensitive land uses, institutional uses, and 
retail, commercial and office uses that are not ancillary to the primary employment use.  
 

- Conversion of ‘prime employment areas’ to ‘employment areas’ to allow retail, commercial and 
office uses that are not ancillary to the primary employment use would be permitted only 
through a municipal comprehensive review (a 5-Year review under Section 26 of the Planning 
Act) to justify the need and location of the change. 
 

- Conversion of ‘prime employment areas’ to non-employment uses would be prohibited. 

15



 

 
- The foregoing would be more restrictive than current policy. This may be desirable in some 

locations where the priority is long term protection of the land base for industrial development, 
and not desirable in other locations where the strategy is to provide for transition to more 
retail or office commercial uses. 
 

- Prime employment areas would be excluded from the designated greenfield area density 
calculation which would mitigate some of the effect that the lower industrial employment 
densities have on the greenfield density target. 

 
We support the ability to establish ‘prime employment areas’; however, discussion with our 
local municipalities is required and we are concerned that the definition excludes unserviced 
lands outside of settlement areas which are some of our best employment lands. 

 
 
4.4    Natural Heritage System 
 
The province would establish a Natural Heritage System, similar to the current Greenbelt Plan, across 
the entire Greater Golden Horseshoe. The system in the Greenbelt Plan extends into working farm 
fields well beyond natural features and has been difficult to explain and justify to farmers, rural land 
owners and decision-making bodies.  Although the 2014 PPS requires us to establish a Natural Heritage 
System in the County Official Plan, we intended to work with the language in the PPS to develop a 
system that would be appropriate for the agricultural area.  Instead, with the changes proposed, we 
would be in the position of commenting on the province’s system before it is imposed. 
 

We do not support the provincial imposition of a natural heritage system. Current PPS 
policies should govern the development of natural heritage systems in official plans.  

  

16



 

5.0  Main Greenbelt Plan Changes: 
 

5.1   Expansion 
There is a new section called “Growing the Greenbelt” in which the Province shall lead a process to 
identify areas to be added to the Protected Countryside.  A specific focus shall be on areas of ecological 
and hydrogeological significance where urbanization should not occur. 
 
The policy direction calls for consultation with municipalities, among other stakeholders.  Municipal 
support is not required. 
 

We maintain the position stated in previous reports that the Greenbelt Plan is doing its 
intended job reasonably well, and we see no rationale for expanding beyond its current 
boundary in Wellington County.   
 
We do not support the proposed policy that would impose Greenbelt expansion on the 
County. Municipal support should be a requirement. 

 
5.2    Siting of Agricultural Buildings and Structures 
The current Greenbelt Plan requires new development within 120 m of a Key Natural Heritage Feature 
in the Natural Heritage System or a Key Hydrologic Feature anywhere in the Protected Countryside to 
complete a natural heritage evaluation or a hydrologic evaluation to identify a vegetation protection 
zone.  
 
In the Proposed Greenbelt Plan, development of Agricultural, Agricultural-related and On-farm 
diversified uses within 120 m of a Key Natural Heritage Feature or Key Hydrologic Feature will not be 
required to complete a natural heritage or hydrologic evaluation. Rather these types of developments 
will be sited in accordance with a number of criteria specified in the Plan which promote the 
enhancement and protection of the features.  

 
We support natural heritage policy changes that provide less onerous requirements for 
agricultural development than in the current Greenbelt Plan. 

 
 

5.3    Key Hydrologic Areas 
A section has been added to provide policy direction in significant groundwater recharge areas, highly 
vulnerable aquifers, and significant surface water contribution areas.  In these areas, major 
development is required to do water studies or submit designs that demonstrate that the hydrologic 
functions of these areas will be protected and, where possible, improved or restored. 
 
The definition of major development includes buildings that are 500 m2 or larger, which could include 
many agricultural buildings. Agricultural buildings are typically sited on large lots which, combined with 
the required setbacks from natural and hydrologic features, provide ample space for water to infiltrate.  
This requirement is not reasonable for agricultural development. 
 

We do not support the inclusion of buildings for agricultural, agriculture-related and on-farm 
diversified uses in the definition of ‘major development’. 

17



 

6.0  Summary: 

 
The province has proposed extensive changes to the Growth Plan and Greenbelt Plan.  While a number 
of the changes are supported, there are significant areas of concern.   
 
This report summarized the main comments arising from our review to-date, and may provide a base 
for local municipality comments. Our review will continue over the summer as there are a number of 
areas, particularly related to infrastructure, where the changes will be felt more locally.  Accordingly, 
we plan more analysis and discussions with local staff.  This work may result in a Supplementary Report 
with additional comments in September. 

Recommendation:  
 

That the report “Comments on Proposed Changes to Provincial Plans” be forwarded to the Minister of 
Municipal Affairs, and circulated to local municipalities. 
  
Respectfully submitted, 

 
 
 

Mark Paoli 
Manager of Policy Planning 
 

18
































	C03-  June 15, 2016 -  Council Agenda
	2016 06 01 - Council Minutes
	Public Meetings 
	Item 5.1(a) - Notice of Complete Application-PM_May20-2016-D14-HAY
	Item 5.2(a) - Notice of Complete Application & Public Meeting -2435953 Ontario Inc. - ASR Transportation
	Item. 5.3(a) - Notice of Revised Applicatio and Public Meeting - D14 -J2K

	Communications 
	Item 6.1(a) - LRG Enviornmental Mill Creek Coordinated Monitoring Report - January 1 to December 31, 2015 dated March 28, 2016
	Item 6.1(b) - Correspondence from Dufferin Aggregates regarding Mill Creek Property Annual Monitoring Reports datd March 29, 2016
	Item 6.1(c) - Correspondence from Harden Environmental Services Ltd. regarding Mill Creek Pit - Review of 2015 Monitoring data dated May 26, 2016
	Item 6.2(a) - Correspondence from Harden Environmental - Roszell Pit #625189 - Temperature Changes in Groundwater and Surface Water, CBM, Roszell Pit dated June 7, 2016

	Intergovernmental Items
	Intergovernmental Items 
	IG #1
	IG#2
	IG#3
	IG#4
	IG#5
	IG#6
	IG#7
	IG#8
	IG#9
	IG#10
	IG#11
	IG#12
	IG#13
	IG#14
	IG#15
	IG#16
	IG#17
	IG#18
	IG#19
	IG#20
	IG#21
	IG#22
	IG#23
	IG#24


	Reports 
	Puslinch Fire and Rescue Services Report - April May 2016
	2016 Municipal - NFPP Fire Protection Profile - Township of Puslinch
	Report FIN-2016-016- 2015 Commodity Price Hedging Agreements Report
	REPORT FIN-2016-016 - 2015 Commodity Price Heding Agreement Report 
	Schedule "A" 
	Schedule "B" 
	Schedule "C"


	Report ADM-2016-010 - Declaration of Vacancy -  Councillor
	REPORT ADM-2016-010 - Declaration of Vacancy - Councillor
	SCHEDULE A
	SCHEDULE "B"


	Chief Building Official Report - May 2016 
	Report - County of Wellington Planning and Development Department - 2016 Housekeeping Amendment to Zoning By-law 19-85
	Report - County of Wellington Planning and Development Department
	Table of Proposed Changes
	TOWNSHIP-WIDE ZONING BY-LAW AMENDMENT



	Mayor's Updates 
	Report - County of Wellington Planning Committee - Comments on Proposed Changes to Provincial Plans dated June 9, 2016
	Wellington Dufferin Guelph Public Health Board of Health Report - 2015 Tick and Lyme Disease Program Report


	By-laws
	By-laws
	14(a)
	14(b)





